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THE HEARING COMMENCED, AS FOLLOWS, ON
WEDNESDAY, 12 OCTOBER 2005 


CHAIRMAN:


 
Good morning ladies and 






gentlemen, my first responsibility here today given that we are concerned about safety is to tell you where the exits are.  There is a exit here covered by curtains directly on the left.  There is one here on the right, more curtains.  There is one, as you know, directly opposite you.  


INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIRMAN

My name is John Gallagher, I am a senior counsel and I was recently requested by the Minister for Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, 
Mr. Noel Dempsey TD, to act as an independent chairman of this meeting and I agreed to do so.  I would like to stress that I did not at any time advise, or act for the Minister, for Shell, for Marathon, for Stat Oil, for Enterprise Energy Ireland Limited, nor indeed for any landowner, An Bord Pleanala, Mayo County Council, or any other person or party in relation to the Corrib Gas Project.  

I was not, and am not, counsel for any interested party.  I am an independent neutral person, a native of Mayo with very strong links to the county, I should say, who would love to see the present dispute resolved to the satisfaction of all concerned.  

I am not an engineer, and although I have read with great interest the events surrounding the Corrib Gas Project and events leading up to this meeting, I am not in a position to comment upon, or deal with the design or operation of pipelines or terminals, or anything of that nature.  

There are experts here who will be able to deal with all of those matters and these experts have, in fact, been asked by the Minister to report to him on this project and in particular the safety aspects of it.  My sole function is to chair this meeting.  Before I outline the procedure that I intend to follow today, I wish to setout the background to the holding of the meeting.  

In August of this year the Minister set up a Technical Advisory Group, which is known as TAG, within his Department to handle certain elements of the Corrib Gas Project.  These were;

(1) To manage the independent Safety Review of the onshore upstream section of the pipeline between landfall and the terminal site at Bellanaboy, and; 
(2) To manage the inspection and monitoring regime for the development.  

The members of TAG are as follows, and they are on my left‑hand side:  

The first gentleman nearest to me, with the glasses, is Mr. Bob Hanna who is the chief technical advisor on Energy, Energy and Installations Inspector with the Department.  He is a fellow of the Institute of Engineers of Ireland. 

Beside him is a Mr. Koen Verbruggen who is a senior geologist, Geological Survey of Ireland.  And next to him is Mr. Richard McKeever, an assistant Chief Engineer in the Engineering Division of the Department.  

A total of eight companies submitted tenders to the Department for the conducting of the independent Safety Review.  The tenders were evaluated by the Technical Advisory Group and following that process they recommended that Advantica be selected to conduct the interview.  The Advantica gentlemen are on my right and I will introduce them to you in just a moment.  

I just want to set out what the terms of reference for the Safety Review that Advantica is conducting are.  These are as set in and out in the request for Tender Document and on they are on the Department's web site.  And I quote:


"The new Safety Review shall be in the form of a comprehensive review for the Minister for Communications, Marine and Natural Resources on the Health and Safety Aspects of the proposed Corrib Gas Onshore Pipeline, that:  

(1) Identifies all relevant documentation relating to the design, construction and operation of the onshore upstream section of the Corrib Gas Pipeline and associated facilities, that is, from landfall to the gas terminal; 

(2) Critically examines all such documentation;

(3) Concludes whether or not in the professional opinion of the consultants the proposed installations have been, or will be, designed, constructed, installed and operated to appropriate Standards, Codes of Practice, Regulations, and Operating Procedures, comply with Recognised International Best Practice, will deliver a facility which is fit for purpose; 

(4) Identifies any deficiencies in any respect relating to the above;

(5) Makes recommendations regarding such deficiencies and; 

(6) Provides detailed guidance on the interpretation of any recommendations.  

The Tender Document provided that the Minister reserve the right to require that such additional work be undertaken and information provided as part of the report as the Minister considers necessary for the purpose of assuring the comprehensiveness, quality, and appropriateness of the final report.  

A public presentation of the report's findings may also be required.  The Tender Document provided that the work on the report would include consultation as necessary to elicit the information required to ensure that the work is comprehensive and exhaustive".  



That is really one of the main reasons that we are all here today.  The Minister has publicly described this Public Hearing, two‑day Hearing, as a non‑statutory initiative which in his words, and I quote:


"Is an effort to afford an opportunity for people with genuine concerns and fears about safety to put forward their case.  I was concerned that if we forged ahead without people being afforded that opportunity they might believe that we were not willing to listen at first hand to their concerns.  

A two‑day Hearing is to form part of the consideration that Advantica will give to its final report on the Safety Review.  The two‑day Hearing would not be empowered to set aside the Environmental Impact Studies.  However, if Advantica make recommendations that have implications for the EIS then I have to consider them, particularly from a safety viewpoint.  

At the end of the Hearing and of the Safety Review, I want a clear statement to the effect that the pipeline is safe or unsafe, that it could be made safer or whatever, and how that might be done.  It could find that some safety aspects were not given the consideration they deserved and make recommendations to rectify the situation.  Those are the types of options I envisage for the end of the Safety Review".  



They are the words of the Minister and they formed part of his presentation to the Joint Committee on Communications, Marine and Natural Resources.  And they can be found, if you wish to find them, on the Oireachtas, as I did, on the Oireachtas web site.  As I said, my function is to chair the meeting and in deciding to do so and in agreeing to do so, I met with Mr. Bob Hanna, I outlined to him the form I envisage this meeting would take.  

The Minister has invited written submissions and I know that some written submissions have been received.  If anybody here, or indeed elsewhere, wants to make written submissions then I would urge them to send them to the Department at the earliest possible moment.  

The submissions and the issues that will be addressed, issues on safety, that will be addressed here will be recorded for the Minister.  As you will see we have on our left a stenographer who is recording everything, and will record everything, that is said here.  That will appear in the form of a transcript for the Minister.  It will be presented to the Minister in due course as part of the Advantica report.  He will have everything that is said here before him to enable him to consider the concerns, whatever may be said here, as part of his ultimate consideration of the Review.  

Because stenographers are fallible and require to know the names of people who are speaking here, I want everybody who poses a question, or who speaks here, to identify themselves clearly.  If I ask somebody to repeat their name, or to identify themselves in some other way, I hope you will understand that my purpose in so doing is so that the transcript can accurately reflect the names of all concerned.  

I do not think I have anything else to say to you except to introduce to you the gentlemen from Advantica who are on my right.  There is 
Dr. Mike Acton, Dr. Bob Andrews, and Arwell Griffith, you will see their name‑tags in front of them.  They will be here to answer questions and to take on board any concerns that may be raised by you.  

In the first instance I will ask Mr. Bob Hanna to speak to you and then I will ask a representative from Advantica on my right‑hand side.  Thereafter, members of the public here can speak and address questions to the experts.  In order to do so I would ask them to speak into the roving microphone that will be presented, and to identify themselves by name so that their contribution can be fully recorded.  

I would hope that we will have a comfort break at about perhaps 11:30 a.m.  At that the stage, Richard Browne on my right, has arranged for coffee in the room just outside the door here.  Mr. Hanna, please.  I will move to one side as I understand that 
Mr. Hanna has a presentation.  


END OF INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIRMAN


























SUBMISSION BY MR. BOB HANNA


MR. HANNA: 



Good morning ladies and 






gentlemen, my name is 
Bob Hanna, I work for the Department and I am the Chief Technical Advisor and I am a civil engineer.  I am a conscious that we are in a Gaeltacht area and that people need to understand and be understood under the Official Language Act and everything else.  You will appreciate from my accent that I am not from this part of the country.  I am from the forth green field and I was educated in the State system and therefore, I apologise to you that I do not speak Irish.  I am not required to speak Irish for my job, but the Department is required to facilitate people who wish to be understand and receive responses in Irish.  I therefore have to apologise to you personally, I am unable to do that.  

However, if people may wish to make submissions in Irish, they may speak slowly in Irish, we are recording the proceedings.  We will obviously not be able to respond to you on the spot, but we undertake to respond as part of the overall consultation process before the end of the month.  If people have particular concerns or difficulties then please do speak to my colleague Richard on the table at the side about that. 

Secondly, just to complement what John has said about safety matters, he has pointed out the fire exits.  The alarm in this hotel is a continuous bell type signal.  Should you hear it, please leave calmly by one of the exits and assemble outside to the front.  I hope it is not necessary, but those are the arrangements.  

Most of you will not be need to be reminded of this and some of you may not be able to easily see the screen from where you are sitting; please feel free to move and sit elsewhere.  We have a number of hard copies of this presentation available, but please do make sure that you can comfortably view the screen.  

This is a big project for all of us in this room for one reasons or another.  This is a huge potential find of gas, 900 billion standard cubic feet of gas, with an estimated 20‑year lifespan.  So this is a big project for all of us.  Hence, the concern and the attention that is being paid to it now and has been paid to it to some extent in the past.  


Approvals, Consents and Licences 


I want to briefly list some of the context in terms of approvals, licences and so on that effect this project and have been put in place, or are yet to be put in place.  There are lots of pieces of legislation that impact on this project, specifically the Continental Shell Act, the Petroleum Act, the Gas Act, the Foreshore Act and the various planning permission issues.  I will just make an observation for the record that the Integrated Pollution Control Licence is pending and planning permission as you all in this room know, was granted eventually on 
21st October.  But the various approvals have been given including specifically the plan of development approval, which was given on 15th April 2002.  


Key Features of Project

What is significant and key about this project are that it is known as a sub‑sea type project with an onshore terminal.  There is control of the sub‑sea facilities via an umbilical control cable from the terminal.  That the wells are connected to a central manifold offshore before coming onshore.  Specifically in the design there are a number of valves which are designed to be normally held open, but with "fail‑safe" between the reservoir and the shoreline.  These have been subject to review by the Department on two previous occasions, famously documented and famously discussed, and will be considered further in this review.  

Hopefully people in this room understand the area that we are talking about and the route of the pipeline.  I know many of you are more familiar with it than I am, but for the purposes of this meeting it is important for the record that we clearly understand what section we are referring to.  

It is the section from landfall to where it enters the terminal building.  The purpose of this review is not specifically to deal with the offshore section of pipe, or what goes on within the terminal, except insofar as it may impact on the design or operation of the upstream onshore section of the pipe itself.  This will be further discussed by my contracted colleagues from Advantica.  


Role of Technical Advisory Group
 
John has mentioned the Technical Advisory Group, and I haven't heard his presentation so apologies for some repetition.  It was established in late July with a couple of specific purposes, the first was to appoint consultants and manage this particular review.  Now, with this process there has been discussion in the public domain as to why this took so long.  I think it is appropriate for me to say that that's because it was undertaken according to due process which takes quite a while to complete.  

We had to design terms of reference.  We had to go out for public tender, we had to evaluate the tenders.  We had to have interviews with short‑listed tenderers and then we had to conclude a contract and all of that meant that it took until 1st September before work could begin on the review.  We did this as expeditiously as possible, but also as thoroughly as possible.  We are also required, my colleagues and I, to make recommendations to the Minister arising from the findings of the review and we have to make a report following receipt of the final report from Advantica.  

Then our second major task is to design and put in place new inspection and monitoring regime for the Corrib Project, any implementation aspects of that that may happen in due course.  Immediately we are involved with supervising the cutting of the pipeline.  I would just like to make it clear that the Minister did order that the pipeline that had been welded in advance of consent being given is to be cut.  There was no specific timeframe in the Minister's Order, but obviously it is excepted that that will happen as soon as is possible.  

The Company now that they feel they have access to site, are dealing as a matter of priority first of all with urgent environmental concerns, such as water run‑off and possible contamination.  We think this is entirely appropriate, but immediately that is dealt with, they will proceed to cut pipe and we will monitor that.  We expect that that will start to happen some time next week, but the longer term inspection and monitoring regime is work that we will address ourselves once the Safety Review is complete.  

We have statutory powers, although the Technical Advisory Group is a non‑statutory Body.  We have statutory powers under the Energy and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1995, and under the Foreshore Lease.  The three of us are authorised officers which means that we can visit site at any time without notice.  We are appointing additional authorised officers to ensure that we are fully capable of operating the monitoring regime.  



Role of the Consultants, Advantica 


Moving on to the Safety Review specifically for the purposes of this meeting Advantica were selected, as I have said, after rigorous open tender process.  The final decision was made on recommendation from the Technical Advisory Group to the Minister.  Quoting again from the terms of reference:  


"Their work is specifically to locate and identify all relevant documentation".  



Which isn't just to do with how the pipeline exists today, but its design, how it is to be constructed, how it is to be operated for this specific section of the pipeline that I have mentioned.  They are world experts in doing this and they will critically examine all such documentation once they have it in their possession.  

Professional conclusions; are the proposed installations designed, will they be constructed, will they be installed, will they be operated through whatever appropriate standards, codes of practice, regulations and operating procedure as may exist?  Will the proposed installations comply with recognised international best practice?  It is for the consultants to determine what "best practice" is.  Will the proposed installations deliver a facility which is fit for purpose, will it do what it is intended to do in a safe and professional manner?  

Further, they have to identify any deficiencies that they may uncover in respect of any of the previous items, make recommendations regarding such deficiencies that they may find, and also provide detailed guidance to the Minister on the implementation of any recommendations that they make.  



Public Consultation

So as part of that process, as John Gallagher has said, the public consultation is very important.  In so doing we recognise that public consultation has not been a major feature of the Department's role in this to date.  This two‑day Hearing is part of our attempt to redress the balance because the Minister is particularly anxious that people with concerns do feel that they have an opportunity and do have in practice an opportunity to raise issues for consideration during the Review and not when the Review is complete. 

Written Submissions

We have already published a notice on our web site inviting written submissions and we have received a number of those.  We are now inviting oral submissions and further written submissions which can be made up to the end of the month.  As Mr. Gallagher has said, we are recording all contributions made today.  

Written submissions can be made up to the end of the month, they can be sent by post, by fax, e‑mail or hand delivered to the address of the contact details given.  This is also on a hard copy.  If you need to transcribe this information please see Richard on the side table later.  

We will be taking submissions up to 28th October, so for people here today who learn things and wish to make submissions later we hope that this gives time for you to consider and make submissions if you wish.  It is important that we point out that this is a very open process and all written submissions will be published on our web site.  We have already received some submissions and those are already in the possession of the consultants, so people who have made submissions since the 10th August, either directly to the consultants or to the Technical Advisory Group do not need to resubmit those.  They are already under consideration.  

However, people who may have written to the Petroleum Affairs Division within the Department, or to the Minister, or to anybody other than the Technical Advisory Group we may not be in possession of those submissions, so it would be important to resubmit if you did not address to original submission to the Technical Advisory Group.  That said, we are in possession of some submissions that came to us indirectly, but we cannot be sure we have got them all.  



What Next?
  
So what happens after today and after tomorrow?  The consultants will formulate a draft report when they have considered what they have heard, what they have read, and the professional work that they are doing, more of which you will hear later.  This report will be published on our web site again, as received, early in November.  There will then be a further period of time allowed for further comment and submissions to us.  So you will have the full safety report in draft form.  You will be able to make comment on that.  Then the final report will be submitted by the consultants to the Minister and that also will be published.  

Following that my technical group has to consider the report and make a recommendation or recommendations to the Minister.  It is expected that that report will be published, but the Minister has still to pronounce on that.  I would be surprised if it were not published, but I am bound by rules which dictate the conduct of civil servants and advice that I may give to the Minister is not necessarily in the public domain, but I expect that he will place it in the public domain.  

What is important is that we have a consultation period which is now open, and your views are invited and we will be receiving them later on today after the information presentation from Advantica.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. BOB HANNA



CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you, Bob, I just have 






one question really arising from what you have said at this stage.  You said that a "Draft Report" would be published in early November and an opportunity will be given at that time to members of the public to make observations on the Draft Report.  Can I take it, and can everybody else present take it, that any such observations or submissions that are made on the Draft Report in November next, will be taken into account by the consultants before they furnish their final report to the Minister?  

MR. HANNA: 



Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I am 






sorry if I didn't make that clear, that is indeed the intention.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Now, perhaps we will have 






Mr. Griffiths from Advantica.  Would you like to introduce yourself and tell us about your role?  

MR. GRIFFITHS: 


If you give us just a 






moment to get set up for our presentation.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Mr. Chairman, while they 






are doing that, could somebody clarify a point?

CHAIRMAN:  



Yes, Mr. Sweetman.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


We now have three pipeline 






routes.  I would like to know which one we are actually addressing.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I beg your pardon?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, we have two pipeline 






routes.  We have a pipeline route in the offshore EIS, we have a pipeline route...  

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, perhaps you could 






start again.  Please identify yourself, I know who you are, Mr. Sweetman.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Peter Sweetman who more or 






less lives here.  We have a little problem because we have, it now appears, three pipeline routes.

CHAIRMAN: 



You are looking at three 






maps?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I am looking at three maps.

CHAIRMAN:



Are you indicating that 






there are perhaps discrepancies between the maps as to the pipeline route?  

MR. SWEETMAN:   


No, not discrepancies.  






Discrepancy would not be the right word, major differences, major differences.  And I'd like to know which pipeline ‑‑ and we would got a third one this morning.

CHAIRMAN: 



This is for indicative only 






and I have to tell you, 
Mr. Sweetman, that it was at my suggestion so that I and others who are perhaps less familiar with the entire matter might be readily able to identify it.  It is indicative only. 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Okay, we'll dismiss that 






one.

CHAIRMAN: 



So we are down to two, yes?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


We are down to two.  You 






know the joke about the Mayo man building the Channel Tunnel?  

CHAIRMAN: 



I do not like jokes at all 






about Mayo men at all, or indeed Mayo woman.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


This is a good one.

CHAIRMAN: 



And I certainly resent any 






Kildare man coming down and making jokes about Mayo men and Mayo.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


When the Mayo men were 






digging the Channel Tunnel they were digging it from two ends, right.  And someone asked them "what happens if you don't meet in the middle"?  Sure, that would be great for them, they'd get two tunnels.  This is an Englishman building a pipeline and we have the exact opposite.  We have two pipelines and neither of them looks like they are going to meet anywhere, so they're both useless.

CHAIRMAN: 



For the purposes of this 






exercise, can we assume that they will meet at some stage...(INTERJECTION) 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, no, because they go 






different places.  This is very important, they have permission for a terminal and we have permission for a pipeline, and the pipeline is at the top of the wall and the pipelines don't meet.

CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Sweetman, in due 






course, I have no doubt that you will want to address the assembled multitude and you can perhaps raise that point at a later stage...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Could you not tell me which 






one we are talking about?

CHAIRMAN: 



We are talking about the 






tunnel and the pipeline.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, I am talking about the 






tunnel.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Griffiths, please.  





SUBMISSION BY MR. ARWELL GRIFFITHS 



MR. GRIFFITHS: 


Thank you very much.  Good 






morning, my name is 
Arwell Griffiths and I work for Advantica.  Mike, could we have the first slide, please.  

Overview 

In our presentation this morning I will first of all just cover very briefly, a brief overview on Advantica and setting out our credentials as an engineering consultancy.  Most of the information that we will be presenting will actually concern the scope of the Safety Review, how we propose to go about conducting it, and how we propose to structure the report.  

I will just say at the outset that we are clearly here today to answer to the best of our ability any points of clarification about this.  But we are primarily here to listen to the views that are being expressed and the points that are being made so that we can make sure we are taking full account of these in our report and final recommendations.  Can I have the next slide please, Mike.  


What Does Advantica Do?
  
So what about Advantica, what do Advantica do?  Well, we are an engineering consultancy.  We focus on the energy industry and have particular expertise in the gas industry where we are involved in giving advice over the whole project lifecycle.  Our origins are in British gas.  We have subsequently added to that knowledge base through growth and also by buying other engineering consultancies in the UK and North America.  We have approximately 500 scientists and engineers covering various areas of expertise, including that of safety and risk management.  

We Are a Global Business

We do operate around the world, particular areas in which we do operate are Europe, North America, Middle East and China.  This does give us wide access to and knowledge of International Best Practice, which is a large part of what we are able to bring to any work assignment that we are asked to carry out.  The next slide please, Mike.

Award Winning Technology 

Our areas of the expertise are widely recognised throughout the industry and that has been the case for many years.  Most recently we have been specifically recognised for our engineering skills in the last two consecutive years by the International Institutes of Gas Engineer and Managers.  Can we just move on, Mike.  

Key Personnel

This recognition of course is based on the reputation of our engineers.  I would now like to introduce my colleagues, two consultants who will be leading the Safety Review.  Sitting on my left is Dr. Bob Andrews whose particular area of expertise is in the structural integrity of pipelines and other structures gained from 20 years experience in the industry.  Sitting in the centre, Dr. Mike Acton whose particular areas of expertise focus on studying the consequences and investigations of accidental gas release and then leading to expertise in application of pipeline risk management.  That is gained from 
17 years experience in the gas and oil industry.  Mike will be taking us through the rest of this presentation and I would now like to hand over to him.  Thank you.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. ARWELL GRIFFITHS 




SUBMISSION BY DR. MIKE ACTON


DR. ACTON: 



Thank you for that 






introduction.  My name is Mike Acton and I am the consultant working with Bob Andrews taking the lead on putting this Safety Review together.

CHAIRMAN:   


Can you speak a little 






closer to the microphone.

DR. ACTON: 



Anyway I just wanted to 






continue from Arwell's introduction by saying that the two of us are part of a larger team.  There are actually six people who have been working on aspects of the Safety Review and a number of other specialists who have looked at specific documents that fall into their area of expertise.  

Background

By way of a bit of background, the pipeline industry generally has a good safety record and incidents are rare, but we recognise that they have occurred from time to time.  The Corrib Onshore Pipeline is planned to operate at a high pressure carrying untreated gas and that's given rise to concerns expressed by local people about the safety of the pipeline.  Those concerns are particularly focused on the consequences of failure.  So if you like, however unlikely the event, what could happen?  And the Safety Review has been commissioned in response to those concerns.  


Scope of Safety Review

Now, Bob Hanna has already introduced the scope of the Safety Review that we have been asked to undertake.  I will expand on it slightly, in that we will be identifying and obtaining the relevant documentation and subjecting it to a critical review.  That review will include assessment of the completeness and suitability of the documentation.  But we will also be verifying aspects of the pipeline design and the risk calculations that have been undertaken using our own models.  

An important aspect of that is looking at the areas of uncertainty.  We will be looking at the risk reduction measures that have been considered in the project.  The output of the review will be our report to Minister giving an independent professional opinion on the design, construction, and operation of the pipeline.  As Bob Hanna has said, we will be discussing any deficiencies that we identify in our work and offer recommendations on how they should be addressed.  

Just for clarity, included in the scope of our work is very much the health and safety aspects of the pipeline in terms of its design and risks to public safety.  In doing that, we will be reviewing all the available documentation for completeness and suitability.  But we are not assessing the environmental issues that may be associated with the pipeline.  We are not assessing the risk to workers involved in the construction.  And we are not looking at the design of the terminal, the offshore pipeline, or the sub‑sea equipment.  

The process that we followed is outlined here.  Essentially we were provided with an initial set of documents by the Technical Advisory Group.  Following an initial review of that we identified and requested additional information that we wanted to see from Shell.  We held a meeting with Shell to clarify points associated with the documentation and also to discuss the background to the design selection process.  

There are over one hundred documents in our possession now.  These have been classified as either technical documents that have been subject to a detailed technical review by specialist.  Some of the documents provide background information including information on the project history and some of the documents essentially fall outside the scope of our review.  

As you probably know, we undertook a site visit along the pipeline route to confirm our understanding of the route and also local conditions, such as the ground conditions.  We are now participating in this two‑day Oral Hearing and there will be an opportunity for written submissions as well so that we can hear all of the concerns that were being raised about the pipeline and take them into account.  As has been mentioned already, a Draft Report will be available for comment in early November with a final report to be preferred following comments on that.  

The last part of my presentation provides an outline of the proposed report structure to give you an idea of what is likely to be included in the report.  Essentially we are planning to structure it in seven main section with detail contained in two or possibly more appendices; introduction to the project and the Safety Review.  

Safety Review Process

A description of the Safety Review process that we have adopted; four main sections essentially are highlighted in blue which I will come on to in a little bit more detail in a minute, and concluding with our recommendations.  The appendices will include a summary of the comments received and also detail technical calculations about the risk.  

Proposed Report Structure

section 3, which is one of the sections that I have highlighted, will be a high level review of the constraints that determine essentially why the pipeline is there in the first place and how the pipeline route was selected.  It will look at constraints in terms of the landfall and the terminal, which obviously determine why the pipeline is where it is.  

We will be looking at the consideration, in particular, given to safety issues in the selection process for the sub‑sea tie‑back option, landfall and terminal locations, and obviously the route itself.  

The Engineering Design Section is very much my colleague Bob Andrews' area of speciality and this is really looking at how the pipeline is being designed to do the job that it is intended to do.  That will look at how the pipeline is being designed against a number of threats essentially.  We will look at mechanical integrity of the pipeline, issues including fatigue, possibility of impact from the pipeline, effective ground movement.  We will be looking at the material that the pipeline is proposed to be constructed from, including welding, corrosion control, construction and installation, testing before the pipeline is put into operation, and operations and maintenance procedures.  

The fifth section will be focussing on the risk assessment.  That will start by looking at the Hazard Identification Process that are being carried out to make sure that in our opinion all relevant hazards are been identified.  The pipeline risk assessment process; essentially I have listed the key steps in a pipeline risk assessment risk.  It takes into account the frequency of a possible event and couples that with the possible consequences of that event to calculate risk.  

The diagram that you may not be able to read, is essentially showing how those things are coupled together in a logical way to calculate risk.  But the steps that are gone through essentially are to identify the possible causes of failure relevant to that pipeline, how the pipeline might fail, that is basically from a small hole to a full‑board rupture.  If it fails, how much gas would come out.  How likely it is to ignite.  And if it did ignite the size of the fire that would be produced in the effects.  

Finally, that section will look at risk reduction measures, possible risk reduction measures that could be considered to reduce levels of risk to the level that would be as low as reasonably practicable.  

The discussion section will discuss issues that we have identified during our own review.  But also in particular, those issues that are raised through the consultation process, either through the Oral Hearing or through written submissions.  A number of issues have already been identified and are listed here; so the selection of the Design Code in comparison with International Standards.  The high design pressure of the pipeline above the typical pressure range of onshore pipeline codes and the range of validation of most models.  Proximity to housing and the possible consequences of pipeline failure, and influence on safety of the gas composition.  The pipeline route crossing areas of deep peat which can be prone to movement and also and mitigation options.  

Summary

My final slide actually is just a summary to say that Advantica does recognise the real concerns that people have over the safety of the pipeline and we offer independent professional staff with a lot of experience of pipeline safety issues.  We have access to a lot of historical data, partly from our involvement through British Gas and its successors, but also through collaboration with other companies from around the world.  

We have sophisticated and advanced risk assessment tools and methods to assess risk from gas pipelines and importantly those are validated by large and full scale experiments and by comparison with incidents.  Finally, we are at the cutting edge of development of new techniques.  Advantica staff and Bob and myself in particular, have actively contributed to the relevant design codes and standards for pipelines.  

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY DR. ACTON 


CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you.  Now, who wants 






to start; who wants to pose a question or make a submission?  There is a gentleman here in the second row.  I thought I was here early this morning, but he beat me to it.  On that basis, and only on that basis, he is entitled to be first heard.  Would you please identify yourself and say what you wish to say?










SUBMISSION BY DR. DAVE ALDRIDGE


DR. ALDRIDGE: 


My name is Dave Aldridge.  






I am a retired naval officer.  And I got involved with this problem when I heard about the men being jailed.  I've actually brought you up some documents, unfortunately I've only got one copy.

CHAIRMAN:   


That is all right.

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


There is a print out and 






spreadsheet there and there's a descriptive document underneath it.  Basically what I did was, I took the dimensions of the gas line as I found from the QRA statements.  I calculated the volume of the gas that would be in the gas line, the whole pipeline, coming from the well head to the refinery.  And I've calculated on the basis that if that gas was released under the worst case conditions, which I looked at the meteorological data for the sea and ground temperatures, and I came up with 5 degrees Celsius, at the end of February.  I calculated there was something like ‑‑ the energy that's in it is nine times as powerful as TNT.  And I came up with a figure of 3,500 tons of TNT equipment energy.  

I then went and looked at the data from HSC, which is the UK Safety Agency.  And when I did the calculations which are in that, I calculated that it would destroy anything within 250 yards of the pipeline.  It would kill anybody within a mile of the pipeline.  And it would do irreparable injury to anybody within 1.6 miles of the pipeline.  On this basis I concluded it's not safe.  

The full details of the calculations are in the spreadsheet.  And the description of how I arrived at these conclusions are in the document; the second document.  So if you like, the spreadsheet is a supporting data.  Now, I'm hoping that the gentlemen here, eventually they will look at it in more detail ‑‑ because I literally went onto the internet and looked up my data and I did it in a month ‑‑ that they'll come up and tell me that I'm wrong.  But's that conclusions that I'm came to.  And on that basis I also concluded the pipeline shouldn't be going through a village.  So that's, if you like, not so much a question as a statement; these are my discoveries. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Would you just tell me and 






tell those present, I see your name is David J Aldridge, PhD. 

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


Yes, I used to work for the 






Department of Defence in Washington, so I'm familiar with explosives.  But I'm more on the electronic side.  But this is fairly straightforward; work out the volume of what's in the pipeline.  

Incidentally, I also found on the HSE site that the failure rates for a typical high pressured gas is five times ten to minus 4, which works out at one failure every 21 years.  So it's just on the edge of the project life of that pipeline, but if the refinery, I understand from some of the documents that I read, was 30 years, this would actually suggest that you might have one failure.  The thing is that the failure could happen, would be so catastrophic, that it shouldn't obviously be within a couple of miles of any sort of habitation. 
CHAIRMAN: 



The document that you have 






given to me, and you only have only copy as you say, is an 11‑page document.

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


I also burnt it on to a CD 






so it's possible for somebody to copy. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I cannot obviously at this 






stage present it to Advantica individuals and ask them to comment on it because you have, as you have indicated a spreadsheet...(INTERJECTION)

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


That's right, there's a lot 






of pages in it.
CHAIRMAN: 



It runs to probably about 






15 pages of very, very complex calculations, yields...(INTERJECTION)

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


It took a month to produce 






so obviously.  At the same time that's the conclusion I came to.  It's sort of working from first principles, volume of the pipeline, how much gas, what's the worst case conditions from the weather side, so how dense would the gas be?  I even had to generate the values of the density properties of gas in order to do the calculations.  It took a lot of work.  Obviously it's not a five‑minute job to review it. 
CHAIRMAN: 



All right.  Is there 






anything else you wish to say?  

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


No, basically that's the 






conclusion I came to was based upon those figures.  I wouldn't like to be within 10 miles of it. 
CHAIRMAN:  



Well, I will ensure that 






these are handed to the experts for their consideration and as you say they may agree or disagree with some or all of your conclusions.

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


I've got a second copy that 






maybe I can give to Mr. Hanna and his group. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I do not know whether we 






have photocopying facilities, Richard?  We have.  You can take it that I will ensure that your work is in fact given.

DR. ALDRIDGE: 


Yes, it's my own work. 

END OF SUBMISSION BY DR. DAVE ALDRIDGE 

CHAIRMAN: 



Can I compliment you on it 






because you obviously have put an awful lot of time and effort into it.  I'm not talking about the merits of it, as you say you are standing over it.  But you obviously have put a lot of time and effort into it and thank you for that.  And I compliment you also on your alarm clock.  

Now, is there anybody else who would like to speak?  I think ladies first.  There is a lady beside 
Mr. Aldridge.  Perhaps if you would identify yourself.  Are you happy to speak from there?  

CAPTAIN ALDRIDGE: 

I'm happy to speak from 






here.  My name is also Captain Aldridge. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, may I ask you to 






hold the microphone reasonably close to your mouth so that you can be heard.  Do you want to sit down?

CAPTAIN ALDRIDGE:

No, I'll stand up.  

CHAIRMAN: 



All right.




SUBMISSION BY CAPTAIN PENE ALDRIDGE


CAPTAIN ALDRIDGE: 

My name is also 






Captain Aldridge and I'm also ex navy, but a different branch, the medical branch.  My question is for the gentleman who was speaking from Advantica this morning.  
CHAIRMAN: 



If you would not mind, 






could you hold it closer to your mouth, please.  

CAPTAIN ALDRIDGE: 

My question is to the 






gentleman who was speaking from Advantica this morning.  Is it true that you were working in connection with British Gas?  You had to do, or you had a project with British Gas recently that was publicised?  

MR. GRIFFITHS: 


British Gas is one of the 






groups that we do work for, yes.  

CAPTAIN ALDRIDGE: 

My question is, I believe 






that your gentlemen here said that you have a good safety record?  I'm not an expert, he's sitting here.  My question is, I've read a couple of very highly publicised incidents where you've had some very nasty accidents with your work and I believe you've been quite well publicised and publically in various countries criticised with your lack of safety standards in your work.  

So there's a question in my mind that if you've got this job to review this pipeline, are we really supposed to trust you?  By the way, I am a Mayo resident as well despite the English accent.  I have a very big question mark in the back of my head that if you've had these accidents that are well publicised, they're on the internet, what the heck are you doing here doing this safety review?  I don't think it's really on; is it?  

END OF SUBMISSION BY CAPTAIN PENE ALDRIDGE

CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Griffiths, perhaps you 






would like to respond to that?  

MR. GRIFFITHS: 


Certainly, I will try and 






address that.  I think, if I'm correct, I think the incident that you are probably referring to is the incident that took place with the Transco Organisation in Larkehall, which has recently been publicised. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Would you perhaps for the 






benefit of the stenographers, would you please, if necessary, spell out the incident that you are referring to, or identify it in some other clearer way.  I know that you are familiar with it, but these people are hearing names and places. 

MR. GRIFFITHS: 


This was an incident that 






took place approximately 
5 years (sic) ago in Glasgow.  And the company involved was Transco.  Although Advantica and Transco can trace their origins back to British Gas, at the time of the incident, ourselves and Advantica and Transco, were separate legal companies.  So therefore, Advantica were not connected with that incident.  

Really at the time of the incident; we had no time, within Advantica, had any involvement in the operation of the gas system in the UK.  So, if I've understood your point correctly, I think the incident you are referring to involves another part of British Gas which is independent of Advantica.  I hope that clarify the matter. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Could I just ask you to 






spell Transco; is it T‑R‑A‑N‑S‑C‑O?  

MR. GRIFFITHS: 


Yes, it is, yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you.  Mr. Sweetman, 






do you wish to say something?






SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN 


MR. SWEETMAN: 


I just have a couple of 






queries before we start. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Perhaps you would address 






them to me.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I am addressing them to 






you, Mr. Chairman.  Firstly, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Hanna referred to the terminal as being an "onshore terminal".  It's a pity that we start off we such a glaring error.  It's an inland terminal not an inshore terminal.  It's an inshore refinery.  The application to the EPA is for a refinery not a terminal.  The correct terminology under Irish law is a "Refinery". 
CHAIRMAN: 



That is not a question, 






that is a statement.  I am quite happy that you make your statement.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The first question is, 






which pipeline are we actually referring to?  Because we have an EIS for the Corrib pipeline which was a 2001 application.  And we have an EIS which was submitted for the terminal or the refinery, terminal which is the refinery and the two pipelines are different.  I'd like to know which one we're actually dealing with.  That would be the first question.  

We then go on; Monica Muller and myself wrote to the Corrib Technical Advisory Group on 27th September.  We also wrote the same letter to the Minister for the Marine, Communications, PAD.  We thought we were being very reasonable.  And this letter states:  


"In order for us to be able to take up the Minister's offer to participate in the Corrib Gas Pipeline under consultation, in response to a..."  


CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, Mr. Sweetman, there 






is a young lady there who is holding her hands up at me, if you would not mind speaking slowly, please.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Okay.


"In order for us to be able to take up the Minister's offer to participate in the Corrib Gas Line/Pipeline public consultation process in a responsible, constructive and meaningful manner, our consultants require the following date and information.  

Please supply us with the following as submitted by the Developer with the application to construct the Corrib Upstream Gas Pipeline and CAO; 


1.  All corrections of errors in the EIS which have been supplied to the Department/Minister; 

The Minister's stipulation of Codes of Practice and specifications for the pipeline; 

Proximity to building calculation sheets by the Developer and assessments by the Department/Minister; 

Details of alternative routes examined by the Developer including proximity to building calculations sheets". 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, I hesitate to 






interrupt you, but you are asking a question in relation to an EIS which has been...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, no, no.  I'm asking a 






question relating to information which was not in the EIS, which is not available to the public, which I wrote to that people ‑‑ because this is necessary information on which to make a meaningful consultation.  We have to know what we're talking about.

The trouble here is, Mr. Chairman, that nobody actually knows what we're talking about because neither Shell ‑‑ Shell put a spin on it ‑‑ the Minster refuses ‑‑ before we go, I'll read the response I got from the Technical Advisory Group. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I have not seen any of this 






correspondence.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, no, it's only very 






recent.  The response I got, now this would be Environmental Information relevant to Public Safety relevant to a subsidiary of an EIS, it would be covered under the EU Directive 2003/2004, on access to information on the environment.  But that doesn't seem to apply to the Minister For Communications.  It's interesting that he doesn't communicate:  


"The Technical Advisory Group has been established under very specific and limited mandate.  This does not include the provision of information on the Corrib Project.  Should you require further information on any of the issues involved, the relevant point of contact is the Petroleum Affairs Division of the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources, which can be reached at PAD, DCM or through the Department's switchboard".  



But you see the unfortunate thing is, the PAD Department doesn't reply because they haven't produced evidence; nothing comes out of there.  This is the most secretive, deceitful Government organisation that I've ever had to deal with.  It makes Dublin County Council look like absolute angels. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Sweetman, did you 






contact the Petroleum Affairs Department?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes, we have been in the 






Petroleum Affairs Department for the last two or four years. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Did you contact them after 






you received that reply?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes. 
CHAIRMAN: 



After that reply?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



What did you ask them to 






provide you with?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The same information.

CHAIRMAN: 



Have you got a copy of that 






letter to the Petroleum Affairs Department?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


We sent it to both. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Did you get a reply from 






the Petroleum Affairs Department?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


You don't get replies from 






them. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Pardon?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


You don't get replies from 






them.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I'll hand it up to you.






No, I didn't finish reading what I was going looking for.  I just thought it was quite reasonable to make the thing.  We want the design and planning requirements for the Beach Valve Station, access and emergency plans.  How can we discuss whether they're adequate or not if we don't know what they are?  

Calculations of the pipeline; they have been kept secret:  


"...design and safety codes of road crossings, including the calculation of pipeline order for determination of the design pipe, please also detail the requirements of the relevant Code of Practice...".



This is particularly relevant to us because Monica's drive actually crosses ‑‑ the pipeline crosses her drive ‑‑ or her drive will now cross the pipeline if it's going to be built.  We'd like to know how it's going to be made safe there.  They refuse to give us that.  

The Plan and Development:  The Minister announced that the EIS, in the Dáil, he made a statement, that the EIS was wrong relevant to the pressure.  And he was relying on the plan and development.  The plan and development application has never been made public.  But I will come back to that later.  Because since we actually wrote this letter and didn't get a reply, we have had discovery relevant to the court cases where Shell has injuncted us.  And some of this information has now been sort of given to us.  We now do know, according to what's been discovered, what the actual Code of Practice is, which makes life much more interesting.  

We also looked for the copies of the Ministerial and other signed Consents to construct the gas pipeline.  That sounds very simple, but that's more for the court case probably than argued here.  And a copy of the signed Ministerial as compulsory under the 
EU Directive; the Consent on the EIS.  That document, the actual Consent under the EIA Regulations, and under the Habitats Directive, is still not being made public; if there is one.  
That's that basic letter that we looked for.  The same letter was sent to the Minister and I'll hand that to you (SAME HANDED). 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Just to explain a bit of 






background to you.  We have a Department here, it's now being acknowledged by the Minister, that their only interest was getting the gas in and nothing else.  They were being replaced by this other group because their monitoring of the thing was absolutely nonexistent by that Department.  In fact, the Department even doesn't even know what's going on.  

There's Mr. McKeever looking at me.  We wrote to the Department recently ‑‑ I'm getting dirty looks ‑‑ relevant to certain things which are in the Environment Plan that had to be done and we got a most wonderful letter back saying "write to Shell for them, we don't know anything about them".  There were preconditions.  There is no ‑‑ the fact that Mr. McKeever comes out of PAD, right.  

MR. McKEEVER: 


Sorry, I do not.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, could you explain 






where you do come from?  
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, Mr. McKeever has 






said he has not.  Can you deal questions that you have to put.  Before you do that, can I ask you if you have a copy of the letter to the Petroleum Affairs Department that you said you had written?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It's the same on both of 






them. 
CHAIRMAN: 



No, I just have a copy to 






the Technical Advisory Group.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yeah, it's CC'd to the 






Minister. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Pardon?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The letter was attached and 






CC'd to the Minister.  So it doesn't matter whether it came from one or the other.  That letter was attached to this e‑mail and it also went to the Minister (Indicating). 
CHAIRMAN: 



That was a letter that 






predated the response from the Corrib Technical Advisory Group who advised you to go to the Petroleum Affairs Department.  Did you go or write to the Petroleum Affairs Department after you received this reply?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, because there's 






absolutely, there's no point wasting time. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I am sorry, I 






misunderstood, I thought that you had said that you had written to the Petroleum Affairs Department after the initial contact.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I'm just as bad.  I'm 






probably going to take the Petroleum Affairs Department and Minster to the High Court relevant to information anyway, because it's a complete and utter joke.  

Now, as we haven't got any of this information we subsequently ‑‑ we have Leo Corcoran who is an engineer and was commissioned by An Taisce to do a report.  He has rather a similar background to Advantica.  He doesn't actually put it in his report.  He was a pipeline engineer with An Bord Gais.  
CHAIRMAN: 



His first name is?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Leo Corcoran. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Is Mr. Corcoran here?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, he's just done a report 






for me and he done a report for An Taisce.  And we don't get any expenses on this.  We have two copies to hand up to you. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, one for Advantica and 






one for yourself (SAME HANDED).  Also included in that documentation is the report to An Bord Pleanala by David Ball who is a Technical Inspector to the Bord relevant to peat.  And peat seems to be something that happens in certain parts of the world and not in others.  

We live, Monica and I live, between the sea and the pipeline, 86 metres from the pipeline, on the shore, in a bog, a reclaimed bog.  Absolutely no assessment has been done or design has been done, as to how the pipeline will be drained, what is going to prevent any form of bog slip relevant to this pipe, and to tell our English gentlemen you don't get bog slides in the normality on steep slopes because bog doesn't build up on steep slopes.  

The crucial slope for bog slides is 3 to 6 degrees.  And I recommend to you before you make anything, the ultimate authority on bogs is John Feehan's, "The Bogs of Ireland".  That will clearly show you and need to be referenced. 
CHAIRMAN: 



For the benefit of the 






gentlemen on my right and indeed the stenographer, would you perhaps spell the name of the author, please.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I'm not too good at 






spelling.  I think it's F‑E‑E‑H‑A‑N.  John Feehan, he's a professor in UCD. 
CHAIRMAN: 



And the title of the book 






is "The Bogs of Ireland"?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


"The Bogs of Ireland".  






It's the definitive work on bogs.  It would be one, one of the only best published records we have found on bogs slides.  Now, just to talk about bog slides, there's been two that have hit the big news in Ireland recently.  
One was the Dooncarton one and the other one was in Galway.  The one in Galway is the one relevant that's relevant here, rather than the one in Dooncarton, which we look out the window and we see that.  And we're reminded of bog slides every day because the scar on the mountain face is directly outside the window.  So this is something that we're rather close to, you know.  

There's no drainage provided in any plan, or EIS, or anything, of the actual pipeline.  We don't know how the pipeline is going to be set on the ground because no one bothered; it is not shown in any of the drawings.  There is a drawing which is shown on discovery of how you set out the pipeline.  But we have no idea of how it's being based, or is it going down to bedrock, and if it's going down to bedrock ‑‑ which the pipeline stability document would appear from that ‑‑ that it's going to bedrock.  But you have never mentioned anything about drainage and how you're going to keep that water that will accumulate.  
Let's face it, it does rain around here.  We have about two metres a year.  

How are you going to keep the water getting from the level between the rock and the bog, there's a 
4 millimetre layer between the rock and the bog which, if diluted with water, becomes a super‑grease pad.  That is what causes bog slides.  The one in Derrybryan in Galway was caused because the Developer went in, cut a road through it, exposed this particular layer, there was rain and the water go in, and it just went on, and on, sliding down the hill.  And that is exactly; we are in the exact same position.  

There's three houses which would be absolutely threatened by this exact same thing.  One of them further down would appear to be on thinner bog.  The bog in the corner of Monica's field is deep, it's up to 10 metres deep.  It appears from the records and from the visual examination of the bog that somewhere within the last 100 years there was a bog slide in the corner, in the Western corner of Monica's field.  Because where a bog is stable the layers are absolutely parallel, and they do a bit of this and that.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Sweetman, could I just 






interrupt you to ask you to please identify where Ms. Muller's house is by reference to a map.  Without naming the house, you might perhaps identify the house that you are referring to.  If you wish we can have a look at it at the break.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I can do it now, because 






it's very clear on the map. 
CHAIRMAN: 



We can do it at the break 






and we can then deal with it.  Mr. Sweetman, we will deal with it at the break.  Sorry, I have interrupted your flow, but I think the houses should be identified so the issue can be specifically addressed.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


(SAME HANDED) I hope that 






we will be getting the ‑‑ if you read thoroughly, and I am sure you haven't been given it by the Department of Marine because they don't seem to have consulted with 
An Bord Pleanala at all; David Ball's recommendations, I think you will also find that you cannot, when you are working in these sort of conditions, you cannot guarantee.  

You possibly can guarantee the safety of the pipe in the bog, but you can't guarantee the safety of the bog on the land and there are two very different questions.  Nobody in the Department, in the EIS, nowhere looked at the safety of the bog on the land.  We're going to have 10 kilometre water in, water out.  We had a flood up there the other day.  The council came and did some work, blocked the drain, and we had a big lake.  Now, the road could have gone ‑‑ Mayo County Council were out pretty quick to fix it because I think they thought the whole thing was going to wash away.  

I do want an answer before I go on, as to which actual map plan we are talking about; which pipeline?  Is it the one that was given permission by the Minister, or the one that is drawn on the refinery EIS, because they're not the same. 
CHAIRMAN: 



The Minister is dealing; we 






are dealing with the pipeline that the Minister granted a Consent for, as I understand it.  I say that from a position of relative ignorance on the matter because I was not involved.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The Minister has a major 






problem because ‑‑ Shell have a problem actually, not the Minister.  Shell moved the town, but they didn't move the pipe. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Will you address whatever 






you say the issue is because this is not really a...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It's relevant to the 






pipeline because we have two drawings and I'm not giving them to you because they're the only two I have.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Would you perhaps identify 






them by reference to the date, or the source of the drawings, or perhaps can we get them photocopied?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


You can, yes.  I can give 






them to you to get them photocopied.  But we're about break time now; aren't we?  
CHAIRMAN: 



We will photocopy them at 






the break, yes, absolutely.  There is a lady just behind you, Mr. Sweetman.  I was just about to take a break now, but if you wish to make a submission.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN 


MS. MACKLIN: 


I'll be quick.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, would you mind to 






introduce yourself?

SUBMISSION BY MS. WINIFRED MACKLIN 


MS. MACKLIN: 


Winifred Macklin is my 






name.  I live near the school in Pullathomas, just across from where this pipeline is going to be.  I shudder to think how you can observe or predict the risks that are going to ensue from this.  It looks as if the whole valley is going to be incinerated, I believe.  All that I've been hearing here, the experts and everything, I'm a not an expert.  

I'm hairdresser who worked in a shop in Busby Road in Clarkeston 34 years ago and there was an enormous explosion there.  I smelled gas in the basement of those shops on the Saturday.  We were assured by experts from Scottish Gas; they keep changing their name, they're now British Gas.  As I speak they might be getting another name.  But we were assured by experts that it was safe, open the doors, open the windows and it ended up on the Thursday, that's five days later, it exploded.  All the shops were damaged, there was 38 people killed, 50‑odd injured.  

The man whom I saw through the week had a shop there as well ‑‑ drilling for the gas ‑‑ his head was 
100 yards away.  The injuries were horrendous.  And being a hairdresser I had to ‑‑ I did invalid hair‑dressing later on and some of these people are still alive, sitting in wheelchairs.  And I really don't have any confidence in people who are going to observe the risks, or check out the risks, so‑called experts.  As I say, I'm not an expert, but I witnessed firsthand the carnage and Larkehall as well.  And all the lies that surround the expertise.  

I thank; is it Dave?  Thank you, Dave, and all the people here, the geniuses that are in this area, absolute geniuses, the work they've done, the research they've done and I must say thank God.  This is a place I chose to come to breathe fresh air which is now under threat, to eat clean food which is now under threat, to drink pure water which is now under threat.  Already in the past year the devastation that's been done to our landscape, it's vandalism, that's all I can call it, in such a beautiful place.  

I know I sound angry, and I am angry and I want it on record.  And I want to remind the experts that you can't predict what mother nature is going to do.  Look at the last two years, for example, and we've had more land slips; I forget some of them.  There was one in Killgaligan as well.  Our houses floated away.  You can't predict bog.  You can't predict mother nature.  There's rising seas.  We've had 
New Orleans, Thailand, Pullathomas, India, we've even had an earthquake in England, I think it was Birmingham.  

How can you predict the risks?  Already it's a mess, it's an absolute mess.  I think the Government ‑‑ and this is a statement not a question ‑‑ I think the Government of Ireland should reclaim their authority and tell Shell to go and process their gas out at sea.  All I hear is money being talked of, it's cost a fortune, lives are more important.  

Having witnessed one of the casualties in the Clarkeston disaster, you're too young as I say, you've only have had 20 years and 17 years experience.  All they found was a ring.  So you're talking about incineration.  And I think you should take all that into ‑‑ and leave our valley alone, clean and fresh and pure and good.  It's one of the very few places in the world now that people can come and have a beautiful holiday, or bring up their children in a healthy way.  And I think it should be protected, environmental protection. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, I did not get your 






name.  Would you mind spelling it for the stenographer, please?  

MS. MACKLIN:


Winifred M‑A‑C‑K‑L‑I‑N.

CHAIRMAN: 



I have to acknowledge that 






I am old enough to remember, or should have remembered, the unfortunate disaster that you spoke about.  But for those and for my own benefit, can you just tell me a little about it; was that a an explosion in the city?

MS. MACKLIN: 


In Busby Road in 






Clarkeston.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Was it an explosion that 






was...(INTERJECTION)

MS. MACKLIN:  


In Renfewshire, Larkehall.  






The city is about 10 miles from where I was.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Was it in a community of 






houses or buildings?

MS. MACKLIN: 


Houses, shops, I worked in 






one of the shops.  It was like those tables are there.  There was a car park above and the shops were below and the car park ended up exploding.  The gas was leaking. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Was it leaking into the 






buildings?  

MS. MACKLIN: 


The gas pipe was up; it's 






just like you're tables there.  The gas pipe was underneath the road, solid road, not bog.  And it had leaked into the premises and I went down to get my scissors sharpened on the Saturday evening.  The man who sharpened the scissors was in the basement of our shops.  And I could smell the gas then.  

The gas had leaked and had formed in the basement, formed a huge unexploded bomb.  Unfortunately went off on the Thursday.  Thank God, it was a windy wild day, it was the 21st October, similar to some of the winds and rain we get, so there was no prams outside.  There was less, there was bad enough casualties but less that it would have been if it had of been a nice day.  

Surrounded by experts just like Chernobyl, and I think we really need to look at what the earth is doing nowadays, the calamities in the past two or three years.  None of us are experts when it comes to nature striking back.  I think we've done enough damage to the world in the past 70 years and we need to call a halt and really look.  Man is not God.  We really need to look at what we're doing. 

END OF SUBMISSION BY MS. WINIFRED MACKLIN 

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much, 






Ms. Macklin.  At this stage we will take a short break, perhaps for 15 minutes.  As I said, there is coffee available out that door in the room on your left.  We will resume at 11:50 a.m.  

SHORT ADJOURNMENT 




















THE HEARING RESUMED, AS FOLLOWS, AFTER THE 
SHORT ADJOURNMENT


CHAIRMAN: 



Ladies and gentlemen, can I 






ask you to take your seats, please.  Can I ask somebody at the end of the room close the door if you would please, thank you very much.  

Ladies and gentlemen, we will resume by calling on Mr. Sweetman to continue with his submission.  Before he starts can I ask you please, those of you who have mobile phones, please turn them off.  I understand that the stenographers' can hear telephones.  Their hearing is much more acute than mine, I must say, and having checked I have found that my phone is now turned off.  So if you would not mind please turning off your telephone.  Now, Mr. Sweetman, please.  Mr. Sweetman wants to turn off his telephone.  


For the record I have taken two, in fact, three drawings/maps that you have presented and we have photocopied them and I have returned to you the originals.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Just to get the record 






straight, I will describe them.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Yes, I will describe them 






if you wish.  The first is a document described as "Corrib Field Development ‑ Typical trench cross section sheet 1".  Its CAD number is 52 10 2850.  The second document is "Bellanaboy Bridge Terminal", is its title.  It is Figure 6.1, "Ecological Assessment Habitat" and it is revision 02.  

The third is Figure 19.7.1, titled "Corrib Pipeline Ecological Assessment" Map 4 of 7 ‑ Document Reference "P8059" and it is revision 02.  Sorry, the drawing number is COR‑Phase 1‑83‑10K‑MAP 4.  I have those and I will ensure that they are handed on and passed on to Mr. Hanna and to the consultants on my right.  

SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN 


MR. SWEETMAN: 


I'm into submission time 






now anyway.  The first main submission is that the required pipeline from the terminal building to the shore is exempt development under the Planning Regulations; under the Planning Act's actually.  It is exempt development, gas pipelines are exempt development, but they require EIA under the European Environmental Impact Assessment Directive.  

Now, the simple point here is, the consent if there was one, and I can't accept that there actually is one.  The proposed consent issue by the Department of the Marine for a gas pipeline under Section 40 of the Gas Act is for a pipeline which is shown on the Enterprise Oil Map.  Now, that pipeline is not the pipeline which Shell proceeded to construct illegally.  The pipeline they proceeded to construct illegally was the pipeline which is shown 661 of the Bellanaboy Bridge Town local refinery site. 
 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes, we have submitted 






David Ball's report to 
An Bord Pleanala relative to bogs.  We have this drawing which I have given you which came from; this "Typical Trench Cross Section Sheet 1".

CHAIRMAN: 



Yes, that will be handed in 






to them.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


In the bottom of that 






document it states:  


"Typical cross section, poor ground conditions...".  


I can only presume, because it's not very clear, that that means bog.  Because there's only rock or bog in this route so it must be bog.

CHAIRMAN: 



I am sure that the 






engineers who will be looking at this will be able to evaluate that and determine what is meant by that.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I hope so.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I am sure they will.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


But when we look at this 






cross section we can see everything relevant to the safety, well, what they're going to do to look after their pipe.  But there is absolutely no relevance as to where they're going down to.  They put a depth; is that depth going to be, in some places it will be the low rock, in some place it will be sitting in peat.  If the pipe is sitting in peat it won't be stable.  I only know from Bord Gais who are much more open in this, Bord Gais build a pipe they set the things down to bedrock and they are very careful to try and maintain the route in flat bog all the way, rather than go between the 
3 and 6 degree slope, because they appreciate the extreme dangers of the 3 to 6 degree slope in bogs.  

But, if you are going below the 4 millimetre layer of grease, you have to provide a drainage system.  There is no drainage system in this drawing whatsoever.  There is no evidence that I can establish that shows any drainage system.  Therefore, there is no evidence that we can see that the actual; the pipe may be safe, but the bog is not safe.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Yes.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


That is that point.

CHAIRMAN: 



You have made that point 






before.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The assessment; the actual 






drawings which is questionable ‑‑ but the whole thing is being assessed ‑‑  the actual drawing submitted in the EIS of the landfall would appear to be inaccurate, well, not appears, we now have it on affidavit that it is inaccurate.  

The positioning of what Shell like to call the "Special Facility" which Mayo County Council think is completely underground, all the documentation that we here is a valve station which is manually operated above ground with an activator with a fence.  Now, we don't actually know, because there is two versions; they dug a whole we think to put it in one place.  The plans show it in another.  And we don't actually know and the Department certainly doesn't know because they never asked, this particular site where this development which would require planning permission, because under Class 25(c) of the Planning and Development Regulations the only thing which is exempt is the gas pipeline and the catabolic protection.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Sweetman, we are here 






attempting to deal with issues of safety...(INTERJECTION)  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


And legality. 

CHAIRMAN: 



I am sure that people here 






are very interested about the Exempted Development Regulations and what the provisions require and provide for, but I think that you are dealing with issues that perhaps are more appropriate to a Court and ...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


They're in there already.

CHAIRMAN:  



And are arising or have 






arisen in the context of court proceedings and I think...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


That Section has been in 






the courts since February.  There's no point in doing ‑‑ coming back to what you are doing ‑‑ this is the greatest example of what's called "a project split".  It's an assessment spilt.  It's split all over the place.  There's actually three different EIS's for the same project and all three are now different.  No one knows what it is.  Until such time that we know what we are actually developing nobody can actually make a legal decision.  That's my submission and Ms. Muller has a few words to say as well.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN 



CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you, Mr. Sweetman.  






Would you please identify yourself. 

MS. MULLER:  


I am Monica Muller. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, would you mind 






spelling your name.

MS. MULLER: 


M‑U‑L‑L‑E‑R. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Your first name?

MS. MULLER: 


Monica. 


SUBMISSION BY MS. MONICA MULLER 


MS. MULLER: 


I want to raise two points, 






very short.  One relates to the pressure.  I quote:


"Over‑pressure of the onshore pipeline section may occur as a result of blockage or during shut‑in when the pipeline may reach the well‑head shut‑in pressure of 345 barg".  



I want to Advantica to address the point.  Shell stated over and over again that the pipeline is over designed, which according to this statement about over‑pressure would appear to be safe in case the manifold for offshore valve on the sea floor would fail, for whatever reason.  

The other point that I want Advantica to address in their report is the hydro pressure testing of the pipeline.  I quote:


"Prior to start‑up the pipeline will be tested to pressures which exceed its design pressure of 345 barg by over 20%".  



So far I haven't come across any information of what the hydro testing would entail and how far it would effect people living across the pipeline route.  What will happen if, Murphy's Law, the pipeline should indeed not be in up to 345 pressure plus 20%.  That's all.

END OF SUBMISSION BY MS. MONICA MULLER
  


MR. SWEETMAN: 


Sorry, one point relevant 






to An Taisce, which I have actually submitted the document up to you, there was a query as to pipeline codes in what was discovered to us.  The Pipeline Code Standards submitted to the High Court by Shell are BS 8010, which is now being superceded by PD 80101: 2004, IGE/TD/1, Edition 4, 2001, pipelines for high pressure gas in systems.  

IS 328 2003; well, it is my submission that has absolutely no relevance because that's for transmission pipelines of up to 100 bar and this one does not include it; it couldn't be included in this.

Then they also submitted PD 8010 1: 2004, which is the Code of Practice of a Pipeline is part of steel pipelines on land.  And BSEM 14/161; 2003, petroleum and natural gas pipeline transportation systems. 

Well, if we are complying with those pipelines, that Standard, and we have a 345 bar, well, it just can't be built, as simple as that.  Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: 



Do you think that any or 






all of those Standards are the appropriate Standards, or do you suggest that there is a different Standard that should apply?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


They're the only standards 






that I know of.  They are the only Standards that Shell have submitted to the High Court.  They appear to be the only relevant Standards.

CHAIRMAN: 



You had indicated earlier 






that you had some consultants who...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, no, we couldn't get the 






Standards out of TAG.

CHAIRMAN: 



I take it that your 






consultants would have indicated to you what they say the Standards should be and what is the appropriate Standard.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The Corcoran Report is 






actually based on that report.

CHAIRMAN: 



What does Mr. Corcoran 






suggest is the appropriate Standard that they should apply?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, he says relevant to 






PD 80101 2004, but relevant to that, at a pressure bar of 150 we are talking about there having to be an 86 metre exclusion zone.  But we now find from the other documentation that was discovered to us, that the 150 pressure bar of this pipeline as an absolute maximum is complete fiction.  Because it is an expectant, hopeful, operating pressure.  

The pipe is designed at 20% above 345.  That's what the documentation says.  Therefore, the maximum pressure it can run at, at any point in Murphy's Law, is 345 because that's the pressure that is in the gas well at the moment.  

The gas is under a pressure of 345.  If that manifold on top of the pipe on top of the well fails, the pressure will run through the gas pipe at 345 pressure.  It will take one hour to turn off the valve station at the beach.  So, for one hour we will have pressure ‑‑ in an emergency situation we will have a pressure of 3 ‑‑ in the early stages of the development, the first couple of years, that's when accidents happen, we will have a pressure of 345.  Yet all of the assessments are done, the safety margin is based on a transmission pipeline of around 100 bar.  

CHAIRMAN: 



As you can see, I have not 






read this and as I said I am not an engineer.  Can you summarise for me, if you would not mind, what Mr. Corcoran suggests what the Standards should be.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


He says what the Standard 






is but what he is saying...(INTERJECTION)

CHAIRMAN: 



Does he accept that that is 






the appropriate Standard?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



Does he say that the 






pipeline has been designed in accordance with that Standard, or does it fall short of that?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It falls short.

CHAIRMAN: 



In what way?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


That adequate quality of 






the steel and such like.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It is the quality of the 






steel and the thickness of the steel presumably. 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


If you take in B here, 






right, in that list I gave you.  IGE/TG/1 Edition 4, 2001, steel pipelines for high pressure gas transmission systems, the design of the pipeline for road crossings, right, particularly road crossings; that is of particular interest to us because we have to cross it every day.  It's absolutely deficient because the whole pressure of road crossings has to be treated differently and it hasn't been.  The designers of this have ignored the fact in every way that the actual pipeline crosses three roads.

CHAIRMAN: 



Is he suggesting that where 






a road crossing occurs that there should be some additional support?

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The guidelines say that, 






the Standard says that, it's not in the Plan.

CHAIRMAN: 



Are you suggesting that 






that is not being proposed by Shell?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes.  It's not being 






proposed by Shell.  I can't answer your question categorically because we are working in a complete area of secrecy and deception.  But we have no evidence anywhere at all, that there is any separate design or pipe for the road crossings.  And actually somewhere in the documentation says; "we are not doing it because welding would be difficult".  Because you would be welding two different types of pipe together; it is more difficult.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Just to be clear on what 






Mr. Corcoran says, is he saying that where there is a road crossing that the height should be re‑enforced in some way or other?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



Should be strengthened in 






some way or other.  Is that something that you would want to be done if the project goes ahead?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



That is something that you 






want to the experts to take on board?
MR. SWEETMAN: 


That's what they have to 






deal with.  It is also clearly defined in the Johnson Report, recommendations of the Johnson Report, which was before the Department of the Marine experts when they granted this permission and yet they chose to ignore that section of the Johnson report which said that should be part of the design.  And yet they gave permission to go ahead without any...

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much. 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


So basically the Corcoran 






Report is based on the fact that, on the belief that the Minister was not misinforming the public when he said that the maximum pressure would be 150.  We now know from this documentation that the maximum pressure is 345 bar.  

CHAIRMAN: 



When you say "this 






documentation", would you perhaps identify that documentation.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


The documentation that was 






discovered to the court.

CHAIRMAN: 



Would you give me a copy of 






the document?  I certainly have seen 345 bar as being the maximum pressure.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


But this is being denied, 






you see.

CHAIRMAN: 



I am not an engineer and I 






find it difficult to repair a puncture on a bicycle but...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Both of us know more about 






pumps than gas pipelines.  

CHAIRMAN: 



This is a document prepared 






by...(INTERJECTION)
MR. SWEETMAN: 


Experts.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Experts employed by?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Shell.  There are Allseas 






documents done by Shell.  They're qualified in the map.  I need to give you a full list of these extracts.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Just so we have identified 






them, they were prepared by JP Kenny, Allseas.  I have not seen the document obviously, but I will ask that if Mr. Hanna or others have not seen this document that they should.  

MS. MULLER: 


We apologise for not having 






a full copy.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Once you identify it for 






me, I will ensure that it is obtained.

MS. MULLER: 


I am aware that the 






Department for Marine has copies of the various three versions of the Kenny Report and we are really strapped for keeping up photocopying and everything costs money, and I'm just not able to do that anymore.

CHAIRMAN: 



You can take it, 






Ms. Muller, that I will ensure that the experts are advised, because that is all that can be done, that they should look, if they have not already done so, and if they have not looked for and if they have not already received a copy of the Kenny Report that they should have received it.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


They certainly have done, 






it's on the web site.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Then I am sure that is 






taken care of.  
Dr. Mark Garvan wants to make a statement, I understand.  Dr. Garvan, do you want to make your submission? 
DR. GARVAN:



Do you want me to stand up?  
CHAIRMAN: 



Whatever suits you, you are 






taller standing up. 
Whether you wish to stand or not is a matter for you.  Would you please, for the benefit of the stenographer identify yourself and identify the gentleman on your left whom I recognise from photographs. 

DR. GARVAN: 


Certainly.  My name is 






Mark Garvan and I have been asked to read a very brief statement on behalf of those who have become known as the "Rossport Five", which include Mr. Míchéal Ó Shín who is here in attendance in person.  Mr. Willy Corduff, Mr. Brendan Philman, Mr. Vincent McGrath and Mr. Philip McGrath. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Yes, all right.

SUBMISSION BY DR. MARK GARVAN


DR. GARVAN: 


Thank you for facilitating 






us in doing this.  The statement we have to make goes as follows.  We are making this submission to the public consultation Hearing for two reasons.  First, we want to acknowledge the principle of consultation and public engagement and demonstrate again our willingness to engage constructively in resolving the Corrib Gas Pipeline crisis.  

Secondly, we want to explain in a direct and, we hope courteous manner, why it is impossible for us to participate in this Hearing.  We regard it as appropriate practice that public consultation occurs before decisions are made.  Yet, in the case of the Corrib Upstream Pipeline Consents and Approvals have already been granted.  

The Corrib Gas Plan and Development has been signed off in April 2002 committing the State to support the development concept proposed by Shell.  Compulsory Acquisition Orders on our lands have already been granted without an Oral Hearing.  The pipeline has been exempted from planning permission.  

Public Consultation was required prior to these decisions, not after them.  It is therefore unclear to us what purpose today's Hearing has other than to attempt to retrospectively suggest that consultation has occurred, and to provide a post‑hoc justification for decisions already made.  We believe that by establishing a Consultation Hearing the Minister has conceded the principle that consultation should occur and has, in effect, acknowledged that it has not occurred in this case.  

In addition, this Hearing is taking place within the context of the Advantica Safety Review.  We have already made clear that the terms of that Review were drawn too narrowly.  The Review is predicated upon the development concept proposed by Shell and therefore accepts the production pipeline as a given.  It then poses technical safety questions of the pipeline. 

Our concerns run far deeper than that.  We believe that the entire Corrib Gas Project needs to be subjected to a thorough review on Health and Safety grounds so that the best development concept is used.  We have argued, and will argue, that this is best achieved through a shallow water offshore process.  The Advantica Review will not measure the safety of the proposed pipeline against alternative development concepts.  Comparative safety studies will therefore not be conducted.  In short, the Advantica Review is addressing questions that we have not posed.  

What is crucially important to understand is that our opposition to the proposed pipeline is grounded firmly on our analysis of the consequences of an accident given the extraordinary proximity of the pipeline to our homes.  We say that this would be catastrophic for ourselves and our community.  

There are a number of additional particular constraints on our participation in this Hearing.  First, Shell is continuing to pursue a permanent injunction against us.  In that context, there will be a full High Court Hearing on many of the issues that we might have wished to raise at this Hearing.  It is not reasonable to expect us to deal with matters that will be the subject of future Court Hearings.  

Second, we will also in due course be entering into a process of mediation with Shell and their Government partners.  Once again, many of the issues that might have been addressed in a full and proper consultation Hearing will be examined there.  We therefore feel it inappropriate to, in effect, further duplicate these processes. 

Finally, we want to record that we were released following 94 days imprisonment, less than two weeks ago, and have been slowly recovering from our ordeal with our family and friends.  This Hearing is taking place at a time that is, for obvious reasons, not opportune for us.  That concludes the statement. 


END OF SUBMISSION BY DR. MARK GARVAN 

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.  Do 






you want to add anything to that?  

DR. GARVAN: 


No, we don't, no. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well, thank you very much 






for coming.  As you say, this statement that you have made has been recorded and will be presented to the Minister in due course.

DR. GARVAN: 


Thank you very much. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much indeed. 






Sorry, there is a gentleman down there? 


SUBMISSION BY MR. TOMMY DEANE 


MR. DEANE:  


Mr. Chairman, my name is 






Tommy Deane.  What I want to say is just something that may benefit the whole area if this project goes ahead.  Now, the suggestion I want to make is that the Minister has ordered to dismantle the pipeline, right.  But if the Review comes out in favour of Shell, whether it be offshore or onshore that this goes ahead, there will be a pipeline warranted in any case.  

Now, I live approximately two miles from where the pipe is proposed to come ashore, as the crow flies like, you know.  What my suggestion is, it's going to cost an awful lot of money to dismantle this pipe.  And if it's needed again, to assemble it again.  What I want to say is, that instead of doing that, why not fine Shell a large amount of money, a fine, and put that money into Erris in other ways, into the hospitals, into the wheelchair, into the schools, into sports facilities and everything to benefit the youth of the area and the elderly and to benefit everybody.  That way we would see something.  That's my suggestion.  

I don't know if anybody would agree with it or not.  It's just I want to make that suggestion.  They should fine Shell if that pipe is needed later on.  Just leave it intact at the moment, like.  And whether it comes up at all, or wherever way it's ever going to come up, but to fine them a large amount of money.  And that way we might seek benefits from it.  Thank you.
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you, Tommy.  Can I 






ask you, have you ever expressed that view publically before, or have you conveyed it to Shell, for example, or to their representatives?  

MR. DEANE: 



I haven't.  I've discussed 






with a lot of people like, and they came up in my favour.  They said like that that was a good idea.  But, I'd rather, at this minute if anybody, if they want to shoot me down on it, or support me on it, I don't know, it's just a proposal. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I will give them an 






opportunity in a moment.  It is just to tease out what you have suggested.

MR. DEANE: 



It's just a idea.  Take for 






instance, if the project is going to go ahead in a couple of years time, let's say if they were fined, and then shortly there will be a swimming pool, for instance, built in Erris.  It's going to be opening in a hotel in Belmullet.  Why not if Shell as part of that fine would be to sponsor all the schools of Erris, transport provided for these children to learn how to swim, and indeed for it to be an ongoing thing.  It's just a suggestion now. 
CHAIRMAN: 



You suggestion, and my 






understanding, and I am subject to correction on this, my understanding is that Shell have been told to dismantle the pipeline that has been assembled.

MR. DEANE: 



That's right, that's right. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Because they jumped the 






gun, as I understand it.

MR. DEANE: 



Yes. 
CHAIRMAN: 



They have undertaken to do 






so.  There has been some debate as to when it will start and why it has not started already, and can we get access to it, and all of that sort of thing.  

Your suggestion is, as I understand it, that it should not be dismantled, it should be left where it is, and that instead of dismantling it that Shell should be fined.  I am not sure that there is a mechanism for fining them, but perhaps they would be invited to make a very substantial contribution in lieu of dismantling it.

MR. DEANE: 



That's right.  That's if 






Shell gets the go ahead ever.  You know, we don't know what's happening.  But supposing they do say down the line, if this Inquiry comes out in their favour or whatever it is, to leave it until the time being anyway. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Would you see any 






difficulty, or problem, or drawback in allowing it to remain as it is?  

MR. DEANE: 



Well, I don't know.  That's 






why I'm throwing out the question to any of these people that's going to dismantle it, we'll say it's Minister Dempsey that has ordered it to be dismantled.

CHAIRMAN: 



I understand, but from your 






point of view?

MR. DEANE: 



Well, from the feedback 






I've got on that, they will come out in support with what I've said. 
CHAIRMAN: 



In other words, they would 






say 'leave as it is for the moment until we see what happens down the road', six months, or nine months, or three months, or whatever it is down the road.  Then rather than require them at that stage to dismantle it, invite them to make a very substantial contribution to the Erris area.

MR. DEANE: 



It's not creating any 






pollution at the moment, there's no gas for them to do it put it this way, but it's going to cost an awful lot of waste in money and there'd be no benefit to anybody in Erris today or tomorrow for dismantling it, because there's nobody local going to be working. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I think I understand what 






you are saying.

MR. DEANE: 



To fine Shell and to give 






the benefits to the Erris people. 
CHAIRMAN: 



That will something that 






the Minister will in due course will be aware of, he will read your submission and consider it.

MR. DEANE: 



I hope he does before they 






start dismantling it. 

CHAIRMAN: 



You said that you are 






approximately two miles...(INTERJECTION)

MR. DEANE: 



As the crow flies from the 






pipeline.  But from the pipeline now I might be a bit more from where it's coming in, it's supposed to come inland.  But if it's supposed to, we don't know.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Where exactly do you come 






from by the way?  
MR. DEANE:



I'm from Pucron.  
CHAIRMAN: 



As an east Mayo man I am 






afraid that...(INTERJECTION)

MR. DEANE: 



I'm just on the other side 






of Dooncarton mountain, in other words.  On the Inver side, two miles from Glengad put it that way, and across from Ballinglass Harbour. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Do you say that there is 






substantial support for that proposal at the moment?  I do not want to say words; but there is some support.

MR. DEANE: 



Well, I have discussed it 






with a lot of people and, you know, I just asked them their opinion and why not.  As I said, I'd love somebody to be, you know, like myself, shoot from the hip, and to say what they to say.  Let them agree with them or disagree.  You know, it's just a proposal, that's it.  Thank you very much.


END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. TOMMY DEANE 


CHAIRMAN: 



Is there anybody who 






disagrees with that? 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I'd agree with you, it's 






not legal. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Would you identify 






yourself, please? 

SUBMISSION BY MS. JACINTA HEALY 


MS. HEALY: 



My name is Jacinta Healy.  






I'll be living beside the proposed refinery, should it go ahead from Bellanboy.  I respect everybody has their views.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Would you mind holding the 






microphone nearer to you, please. 

MS. HEALY:  


I would say Shell should be 






made dismantle the pipeline because in the planning system around here, if we do something wrong, if you put up a shed without planning permission, you're made take it down.  So Minister Dempsey is right, make them dismantle it, they did the wrong thing.  But also fine them heavy and put it back to the community, you know.  What I would say, make it them dismantle it, what's good for the goose is good for the gander.
CHAIRMAN: 



That, I have to say, is an 






expression I've heard before, but I'm not so sure that the Minister has power to fine them.  I do not know.  If I am correct that he does not have power to fine them; does have power to say 'you cannot go ahead with that and you must dismantle it'.  

If that is, as it were, the stark alternative facing him, what would you say to the suggestion from Tommy that they be told to leave it there for the moment and leave it there on the condition that you make a very substantial contribution to the Erris community.  Whether it is for school buses, or for playing fields, or for swimming facilities, or whatever.  Do you have any view on it?  

MS. HEALY: 



I would say, you know, if 






we're made ‑‑ I would say if local people here are made to abide by the law be it ministerial law, or council planning laws, or whatever, Shell will also have to abide.  And they should be made dismantle.  What I would say is, if it's in the Minister's powers to fine them, screw them.  

END OF SUBMISSION BY MS. JACINTA HEALY 

CHAIRMAN: 



I get the drift all right.  






There is a gentleman down here who would like to speak.  Sorry, you have already had a chance.  There are people here who want to speak and we have to give them first chance.  The gentleman with the glasses, would you mind identifying yourself? 


SUBMISSION BY EAMON Ó DUIBHIR 



MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Eamon Ó Duibhir. [(Erris Inshore fishermen's Association ‑ os gaeilge)]  that was the Irish entrance for the Erris Fishermen's Association.  [(I am changing to the second official language ‑‑ os gaeilge)]
CHAIRMAN: 



I am sorry, I have to ask 






you to speak in English, if you do not mind.  I understand that...(INTERJECTION)

MR. Ó DUIBHIR:  


That is what I just said, 






Mr. Chairman.  I was changing to the second official language.  What I have to say Mr. Chairman is not in their brief.  But I am chairman of the Erris Inshore Fisherman's Association.  This seminar or consultation process here today has me somewhat confused, if you don't mind me saying so.  

I was here four years ago and this hall was packed.  The Minister was here with his Department.  Shell were here with their experts and the Minister also had experts.  Now, the fact that this hall is practically empty today has no reflection on the concerns of the Erris people about the Corrib Gas Project.  

We made submissions four years ago.  We made them to the Government, to all Government Agencies, to the Tourist Bord, and to everybody in the country through the media.  And to date, as far as I can see, they have not been heard.  Incidentally, I was a bit confused with what Mr. Hanna had said in his opening statement today.  Maybe I took him up wrong, if did I apologise to him.  The inference I got from what he said was that those submissions were no longer available, or would not be passed on to the relevant Agencies or experts. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Could I just ask Mr. Hanna 






to deal with that, just at this stage?
MR. HANNA:   


Certainly, I'm pleased to 






confirm, Mr. ó Duibir, that your submission was received, is in the process of being considered and to clarify my earlier statement, I was saying two things.  Anything submitted to the Technical Advisory Group after the 10th August is in the process of being considered.  If it was submitted other than the Technical Advisory Group it is possible it may not have reached us.  Therefore, to be safe you should resubmit.  

Obviously some things that came into the Minister and other parts of the Department have been referred, but we have no way of knowing whether we have captured them all.  In your case, we got your submissions by post a couple of days ago.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Okay, I accept that, 






Mr. Hanna, but it confuses me that this public consultation is today again asking us for submissions that are already made.  And you addressed the same point in your address, 
Mr. Chairman, asking us to make submissions.  The submissions are there, they should be on file and they should be there.

MR. HANNA: 



Just to clarify; if your 






submission was made to us you don't need to submit it again.  If it was made other than directly to us, the Technical Advisory Group, we have no way of knowing of its existence.  It may have reached us, it may not. 

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


All right, I'll let that 






point go.  Another point that confuses me about this thing today.  We had a recent communication from the Minister, Mr. Noel Dempsey, the Minister for the Marine.  One of our concerns and a major concern of the Erris Inshore Fishermen's Association is the outfall pipe.  

Now, I'm not going to deal with that now because I was told it's not part of the brief, as this is a consultation process, even though we asked that it would be.  But the Minister stated in his letter to us, and I have the letter here.  But what he said in effect was, 'any decision made on the outfall pipe is part of a legislative process and cannot be changed'.  

Now, that's one thing.  Now, what the seminar today is about, isn't it about changing something, decision, already made in legislation about the high pressure inshore gas pipe?  If it is, if that's the reason for this seminar, why can one legislative decision be changed and why not another?  Now, the Minister said it very categorically and I have it here:  


"You will appreciate that the consent given for this is an existing legislative based one and as such cannot be changed".  



Now, are we here today with the view of changing an existing legislative decision made by a previous Minister?  If not, Mr. Chairman, I would like you to tell me why we are here.  [Go raibh mile maith agat].  
CHAIRMAN: 



Tell you why I am here?

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Why we are here, from you.  
CHAIRMAN: 



I have told you why I am 






here.  I am here because I was asked to chair this meeting which, as I understood it, was to facilitate any individual or organisation that might wish to make a submission, or to bring concerns to the attention of the Review Group and indeed the experts.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


What is the purpose of the 






seminar?  
CHAIRMAN: 



The purpose is to 






facilitate people who may wish to convey information that they wish to have taken on board by the experts, so they can deal with those issues in their report to the Minister in due course.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


But not with a view to 






changing the decision already made. 
CHAIRMAN: 



That is a matter for the 






Minister.  He has said that will consider all submissions made to him.  He wants people to have an opportunity of saying what their views are and he is going to take them on board.  What his ultimate decision will be, I do not know.  

I am not a political person.  I am not a civil servant.  I am simply here as a neutral independent person who is chairing this.  What the ultimate result will be, I am sorry, I cannot tell you.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Thank you, I think you made 






it quite clear, 
Mr. Chairman.  I would also like to say that we the Fishermen of Erris also support the shallow water platform process instead of the onshore or inland terminal.  It would eliminate the need for the discharge pipe.  It would eliminate the need for the higher pressure inland gas pipe through a rural village in the west of Ireland.  

The Minister in his letter to me as well stated six reasons why that could not happen.  They were word for word practically what we got from Shell E&P Ireland Limited, and the previous Enterprise Energy Ireland.  So it's a matter of grave concern to me and to us, that the Minister seems to be accepting the option of the gas company, the multinational corporation, instead of taking care of the interests of the citizens of Ireland.  
After all, they are the protectors of resources.  They should be developing resources for our benefit.  They should insist on Shell doing the right thing.  Costs should not be an factor in this.  Health and safety should be the main factor.  Shell, if they find the costs prohibitive, they needn't bother with it, they can give it back to the people of Ireland who will develop it later on. [Shin a will, go raibh mile a maith agat. ]
CHAIRMAN: 



Before you go, I want to 






ask you, this is perhaps something that was not really part of the consultation process, but I am taking advantage of my position to ask a question that I would like to hear your view on.  It is this; you have said that you have a concern about the outfall pipe?

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


That's right, yeah. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Now, I know that we may be 






going outside what we were supposed to be dealing with here.  Would you in ten sentences indicate to me what your concern about the outfall pipe is?

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Well our concern about the 






outfall pipe...(INTERJECTION) 
CHAIRMAN: 



Is it already in this 






document?

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


It is, but I'll outline it 






briefly for you. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Please do.  This by the 






way, is for my information only, nobody else need listen to this.  I am just curious and I want to know.  

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


The fishermen of Erris 






depend on the waters of Broadhaven Bay and the surrounding waters for their livelihood.  There are about 50 fishermen and their families that are supported by it.  Now, we know that there will be some contamination from the terminal at Bellanboy if that is the option that is accepted.  

Now, nobody, including Shell and including the MLVC or anybody else, ever denied that there would be some contamination, that there would be some heavy metals being discharged.  They would be discharged at environmental quality standards.  Now, everybody accepts that.  We'll agree with them on that.  Where we differ with the experts is the dispersion, or the possible dispersion of those contaminants to open sea.  

Broadhaven Bay by its nature is a closed bay, it's got any currents that go round and round, it does not wash out.  Anything that is pumped into Broadhaven Bay will stay in Broadhaven Bay.  Now, then we see in the recommendations that at the outfall discharge location should be no closer than 12 kilometres from outfall.  That is in the jaws of Broadhaven Bay and just barely outside the SAC area.  

Now, they said no nearer than 12 kilometres.  That left it possible for the Minister or for Shell to locate that discharge point anywhere from 
12 kilometres from landfall out to the well or across to America wherever they wanted to put it.  

Instead they decided to put it in a place that the fishermen of Erris, the local experts that know the tides, that know the currents, that are practically born on the sea, and know it so well, told them all that the discharge would not disperse at that point.  They would mostly or largely back into the bay or lodge along the western Erris coast to do untold damage especially to filter feeders, shell feed and crustacean.  
CHAIRMAN: 



If you were to bring me out 






in your boat to the nearest point to land, that you say the outfall should be located, where would you identify?  

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Well, our preferred option 






was reinjection of the waste back into the well.  The technology is there to do it.  We could have been...(INTERJECTION) 
CHAIRMAN: 



Assuming that that is not 






the case, you have a concern about the distance...(INTERJECTION)

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


What I'm leading up to is 






that we're compromised.  We're compromised to the point of capitulation.  We decided on 18 kilometres from landfall; a mere six kilometres of plastic piping strapped to the main pipe as it's being laid.  Everything else is just the same, the diffuser and everything else is just the same, Just six kilometres of plastic pipe.  

And a multinational corporation that counts millions would not see fit to change that location to facilitate the fishermen of Erris and the defenders of our rights, the Developers, the protectors of our resources, our Government, would not see fit to tell them do that.  

Now, when Shell told us three years ago no way will we move an inch unless ordered to by the legislative authority of the country, that's our Government.  We have been trying for the past three years to get some reaction out of the Government.  We only got an acknowledgment until a fortnight ago when I got a communication from the Minister answering questions that we did not pose.  Now, they were related maybe to the questions we asked, but they were not the answers to the questions or to the statements we posed.  

So I would like to support what that man said that this Government of ours needs to take charge of this project and bear in mind the rights of the Irish people and what they need to get out of it. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, just so that I am 






clear on this, and this is between you and I and unfortunately people will be eavesdropping, I suspect.  Are you suggesting that if this proposal were to go ahead, and if there was to be an outfall to sea and it is not going to be put back into the well, that an additional six kilometres would be needed to ensure safe and adequate dispersal...(INTERJECTION) 

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Not safe and adequate, 






to have any chance of dispersion.  We're compromised as I said to the point of capitulation on that.  But I will stress again our preferred option is the shallow water platform.  And I think even in this late stage that our Government and Shell should very seriously, not just seriously consider the shallow water platform, but to accept the shallow water platform.  It would solve an awful lot of problems. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR:  


You're welcome. 



END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. EAMON Ó DUIBHIR 

CHAIRMAN: 



There is another gentleman 






here.
SUBMISSION BY MR. PADRAIG COSCARA 

MR. COSCARA: 


My name is Padraig 






C‑O‑S‑C‑A‑R‑A.  I live five miles from the terminal at Bellanboy.  I have lived there all my life where I live now, apart from three years where I was at college way back in 1965 to 1968.  During that time I studied chemistry, physics, mathematics, agricultural science and geology.  I'm not a genius at any of them.  When you have a big mixture like that, you're only scraping the surface. 

I didn't specialise, I spent many years teaching and always took an interest in the environment that was around me.  I still do.  I farm my lands.  I keep them relatively in good shape and I try to keep my animals that I farm in good shape also.  And a little concern for the future because we don't inherit the environment, we have to leave that to our children.  I want to be specific in relation to the questions that I have. 

The valves that you have mentioned, the fail‑safe valves, I would like if you might elaborate on those five valves.  What if; so far this seminar is about safety, but so far we have listened to unsafety, if there is such a word.  And I want to just say what happens if the umbilical cord to the fail‑safe valves if that becomes severed?  
And as I live within the "kill zone", as we are told, incidentally I remain to be convinced about this particular project.  But as I live within that area, what are the chances of evacuation?  

If there is no failure, the chances for employment are immense.  Locals, people from outside, Europeans, wherever they're from, we cannot stop people coming into this country and working.  We left this country ourselves, a lot of people many, many years ago and worked abroad.  And in most cases we were made welcome.  

That employment and that finance that would be generated by such a project would have to be weighed up against the risks that people have to take.  And I would be taking a risk as well.  So some reference was made to experts on bog.  I have worked with bog all my life.  I live near the bog.  I've harvested the bog.  I would go, if I was looking for advice on bog, I would go to a man called John Mulqueen, who is a recognised national and international expert on bog; simple bog.  

An Taisce has been mentioned here earlier on.  That is, for Advantica, it is a group of people that are set up and partly Government aided in this country to oversee environmental developments.  The record in our area where I live, I have lands in commonage and I have lands owned by myself.  The record of 
An Taisce in our area has not been very, very good.  Anybody who wants to build a house can be objected to by An Taisce, by people who don't live in the area at all.  They can come along and lodge an objection.  

I have such a case, planning reference out in the car, I can go out and get it if anybody wants to have a look at it, where An Taisce objected to a man building a simple house for himself his wife and family.  So I would not rate An Taisce as any kind of serious questioners of a project of this immense nature.  And I would not be safe relying on 
An Taisce, I would not feel safe. 

Some years ago, when this project was announced, different companies have taken this project at various stages, currently we are dealing with Shell, but the people of Bellanboy who live closest to the terminal took action.  They went to the courts.  They went to the Oral Hearing.  They teased out their arguments.  And they made, I believe myself, a major contribution towards the safety of this project.  However, they accepted the rulings and that is what has the project, I suppose, where it is today.  

But it will be all to the advantage, and to our advantage, if the project can be made safer.  And these are the questions we are addressing I presume today.  Because what has happened in the past is gone.  If we are going to have gas coming in for 
20 years or 25 years, whatever length of time and God knows maybe oil coming in after that, then we will want to know that our families will be safe and that our families might be given some employment for the future. [Go raith mile math agat].  
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you, Padraig.  There 






were a number of specific issues that you would want the experts to deal with.  The first is the fail‑safe valves and their adequacy and whether they are adequate, whether there are adequate numbers etcetera, etcetera, etcetera; is that right?  

MR. COSCARA: 


Yes, I gather that there 






are five fail‑safe valves.  If you just give a little explanation on the controls of the valves and are they pressure based?  From my own limited knowledge of physics and chemistry and I'm not an engineer, so I would want to know are they pressure based valves, or how are they controlled basically?
CHAIRMAN: 



The second is what happens 






if the umbilical cord becomes severed.

MR. COSCARA: 


Yes. 
CHAIRMAN: 



What about excavation (sic) 






in the event of an explosion?  

MR. COSCARA: 


Evacuation?

CHAIRMAN:   


Evacuation.
MR. COSCARA: 


Just one other thing I have 






written down here is, if this project has not been done anywhere else in the world, how come there is so much ante‑information about it?  
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, if it has not been 






done?  

MR. COSCARA: 


We're told that it has not 






been done anywhere else in the world.  How come there's so much ante‑information, there's names being quoted around the place here today.  
CHAIRMAN: 



When you say 






ante‑information?  

MR. COSCARA: 


Ante‑pipeline information.  






That's what bothers me.  Where is all this information coming from?  Where are all these experts, if they never worked on one of these before.  I accept that the three gentlemen here, six gentlemen that are working on this project, if somebody tells me it's absolutely safe, I would take it and consider it maybe.  

But if I'm going up in a plane and the pilot tells me on the ground that 'we're taking off in a few minutes', my safety is in his hands from then on.  We do know that the plane, once it gets up in the air it has to come down somewhere.  So the safety of my home; is it safe to live in?  Am I safe feeding my animals?  Am I safe putting a tag on a cow's ear?  Safety is a relative thing.  

In the major thing, we were told one day that there would be a cloud burst.  I presume that it's alkane gas, or part of the alkane family that would be in this particular gas.  And I'm not exactly sure how it's going to get up into the clouds because it seems to be a little more dense than air.  But anyway, that's a problem for scientists, I wouldn't be too sure about it.  That's it. 

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. PADRAIG COSCARA


CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.  You 






have prompted me; I live in Dublin and I use gas, or more correctly my wife uses gas for cooking and whatever, but we are connected to gas.  Duncan Steward was on the television over the last day or two drawing attention to the dangers of gas and the need to have adequate ventilation and what have you.  And I'm mindful of the contribution that we had earlier about the explosion some 34 years in Scotland.  

It occurred to me and you reminded me about it now, because of the reference to density.  To ask perhaps Bob, and I'm sorry for bouncing this on you, if you like.  But is there any difference between the gas that goes along the street in Dublin, or certainly outside my house or indeed in my house, than the gas that will be in the pipeline coming from the Corrib well, if and when that ever takes place?

MR. HANNA: 



Well, Chairman, the 






answer's not simple.  Basically it's the same.  A natural gas is mainly methane, but it does vary slightly depending on where it comes from.  So in our system at the moment we have gas from Kinsale and we have gas from the North Sea.  It varies slightly in terms of its energy content and other properties, but for most intents and purposes it's the same.  

Corrib Gas will vary slightly in terms again, from either of the two sources in terms of its energy content, its moisture content, and several types of hydrocarbons.  But essentially for all intents and purposes, for the appliance in your house, for example, it's the same. 
CHAIRMAN: 



But density was a word that 






was mentioned.  Is natural gas and processed gas; do they have the same density?  Would they mix in the same way or would they interact with air in the same way?

MR. HANNA: 



Essentially, yes.  

MS. MULLER: 


I want to make a short 






comment. 
CHAIRMAN: 



It's nearly 1:15 p.m. I 






think we might wait until we resume after lunch for that comment.

MS. MULLER: 


Well, maybe Mr. Bob Hanna 






can come back and explain to us, if the gas in the Bord Gais pipeline and the Corrib pipeline is all the same, why do we need a refinery?  After lunch, I'm fine.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It'll take you a little 






longer than two minutes. 
CHAIRMAN: 



We will resume at 2:15 p.m.  

LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT














THE HEARING COMMENCED AS FOLLOWS AFTER 
THE LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT


CHAIRMAN: 



Good afternoon ladies and 






gentlemen.  Again, could I ask someone to close the door.  Before lunch I had asked a question in my ignorance, and Bob had given a partial reply.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Your microphone isn't on.

CHAIRMAN: 



It is now.  I had asked 






Mr. Bob Hanna to answer a question that I asked as a layperson and did not know the answer to, perhaps you might continue with that or finish that answer that you started.  

MR. HANNA: 



Well, Mr. Chairman, if I 






remember there were questions from yourself about density of natural gas and whether gas in Dublin was the same as gas here.  And you had a question about the requirement for terminals...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Refinery.

MR. HANNA:   


If the gas is the same, so 






those two questions could go together.  But given that we have got two absolute world class experts in the field in the room, why get me answer to it when they can give you a best answer than I could.

CHAIRMAN: 



I am perfectly happy that 






they should do that.  I am quite happy as long as somebody can give an answer that I can hopefully understand.  Do I have a volunteer from this side, please?

DR. ACTON: 



The question was really to 






do with the treated verses the, sort of, untreated gas properties.

CHAIRMAN: 



You might bring the phone 






closer to your mouth please, if you would not mind.  

DR. ACTON: 



Generally speaking, the 






sort of untreated gas that comes out of a naturally occurring gas what varies enormously; as it happens the gas in the Corrib field has got an unusually high percentage volume of methane, which is very similar actually to the natural gas.  The sort of methane content in natural gas in the sort of, distributed gas and pipeline and so on.  

If you look at the gas that we've used to do experiments, for example, to look at the consequences of accidental gas releases, the properties are broadly similar.  So if you have an accidental release from a high pressure pipeline you would expect it to behave in a broadly similar way.  One of the differences is that there will be no concentration with other things, but in particular the gas will have some moisture in it.  If that moisture combines with CO2 in the gas there's a risk of internal corrosion.  So there's an additional threat which needs to be managed for pipelines carrying that treated gas.  

In terms of the terminal oil refinery, it needs to removes those liquids and mix the gas to service specification before it's put into the transmission system.  Does that answer the question?  

CHAIRMAN: 



That I am sure is a very 






comprehensive answer but what I really had in mind was, what happens if gas comes out of a pipe?  Does it go up into the air, or does it just stay around, is it heavier than air, or is it lighter than air, what happens in a situation like that?  And particularly where you are talking about high pressure.  Is it live for example?  A bicycle tube that is punctured when air comes gushing out...

DR. ACTON: 



One of the incidents that 






was referred to earlier was a consequence of leakage of gas getting into buildings and building up and causing an explosion.  Normally, natural gas when it leak out at low pressure, or at any pressure, is lighter than air.  So it will naturally rise and at low pressure it comes out of the pipe with very low momentum.  So it rises and mixes with the air depending on the movement of the air by and large.  

But at high pressure it comes out of the pipeline at very high velocities, much higher velocities than say the wind and so on.  So if a pipeline breaks completely you have gas that rushes out from the two broken pipeline ends, meets in the middle, and goes up in a vertical jet and that happens at very high velocity.  

If you had a small hole in the pipe you get much the same thing, but then the orientation of the hole matters.  So if the hole is on the top of the pipe when the jet goes straight up, and if it impacts on the bottom, then that will obviously effect the properties of the release.  So to answer your question yes, it will go up, but the way that it behaves will be different because it is at high pressure.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.  Now, 






is there anybody else with a question or a submission?  There is a gentleman down here on the right, would you give me your name, please.  We will get you a microphone.  







SUBMISSION BY MR. GERARD Mc DONNELL 


MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Good afternoon, my name is 






Gerard Mc Donnell and I come from the village of Aughoose, which is approximately two kilometres from the proposed terminal site.  Also where I live and where Aughoose is, is about 1.5 kilometres from a part of a point of the upstream pipe and where it is being proposed for its location.  


Introduction


I am building house at the moment in Glengad so therefore I am also very familiar with where the landfall site is being located.  I am also chairman of the Dooncarton Landslide Committee which is a group of residents who came together in 2003 when land slides occurred in the Dooncarton and Glengad.  And also my capacity here today, even though it is a personal or private capacity.  I want to put it on the record as well I'm community representative on two monitoring groups to the Shell Corrib Project.  

One is the Project Monitoring Committee, a project group that deals with the proposed terminal and the area surrounding the terminal right up to the Srahmore in Bangor and also the Environmental Monitoring Group which is the ELG which is dealing with these particular issues, environmental issues, related to the offshore pipeline area.  

The submissions that I want to make today are based on my own personal experiences in relation to this project.  As well as also including feedback and input that I have received from people in the parish of Kilcommon‑Erris, which I would like to note as well that the majority of this project roughly about 80% to probably closer to 90% is located in the parish of Kilcommon‑Erris, which is one of the two main parishes of Erris.  And the other 10%, if you like, extends up then towards Bangor towards Srahmore where Bord na Mona site is, where the peat is being deposited. 
 
I am making these submissions here today purely in a personal capacity and based on my various different experiences.  And I am here on any other role that I play, for example, in these monitoring committees, I would like to make a note of that.  

I have roughly about 19 points that I would like to make to you today and some of them are related directly actually to the Technical Advisory Group.  The majority of them I have for Advantica which I would like you ask you, please, to consider in your reports and also to look at them in detail and try to include and find that you can integrate them into your final reports in your recommendations.
 

(1)  The first one I have, and again, over the last five years, at least five years, since this whole thing started, I have been very closely watching, even while I was living abroad for quite an extended amount of that time before I moved home, watching as well as to how this Project was being portrayed within the whole community.  

How, for example, people from the local community started fighting against this project right from the very beginning and others who joined later on.  The amount of information that has been going back and over, and a lot of elements in it are still, for many, many people and indeed to a certain extent also to myself, still very unclear.  

I would like somehow, maybe as an outcome to this process today and over the next number of months particularly for the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources to carry out some kind of a very simple comparison, and particularly also to get the Developer as well to do this, between the options of an onshore facility which is being proposed, which is in Bellanaboy, as opposed to an offshore facility.  

And maybe even something like a very simple balance sheet of a plus and minus, so that the local people may begin to understand somehow as to why the Developer, and indeed the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources are pushing so hard for this inland terminal.  

Granted it, it has got planning permission, that has to be accepted, but at the same time many people still don't fully understand what is the benefit, or are the advantages of the offshore or the inshore one, as opposed to the offshore one.  Why can't it be done out to sea?  That has never been, I think, fully completely explained.  I think that maybe the Technical Advisory Group might have a role to play in this as well.  I would ask you to maybe consider that.  

(2) I would like to call on Advantica in their Safety Audit Report to recommend moving the pipeline further away from houses in Rossport.  

Now, again, I stress this is if the pipelines does get the go ahead.  If it does then a key recommendation must be to move the pipeline further away from houses in Rossport than where it is currently proposed.  Again, it may be the safest thing in the world to locate just 70 metres, I have a minimum of 70 metres, away from each house.  I still think that it's unacceptable.  It's still too near and it's still not right to be going through the middle of the village.  

And I know in my heart and soul in Aughoose I would shouting for the same.  It's only across the ferry.  It's just a few hundred metres away from where my parents live and where people in Aughoose live.  But still at the same time, it's still right through the middle of the village.  I think 70 metres is unacceptable.

I would propose that recommendations be made that the pipeline should be placed at least 200 metres away from each house.  I don't see why not.  Again, that may be the argument of where to find the actual place in which to put it down that it would be 200 metres away from each house.  But I'm sure that that is not impossible.  

I think it's in the interest as well, of improving local confidence of the people of Rossport, and indeed those who live the other side of Strucfadacombay, Aughoose, Pullathomas and back towards Glengad, where it is also coming in at Glengad and also enhancing the security, the feeling of security, to the local residents who live near the pipe.  

(3) My next point No. 3, is as well the pipeline itself should be moved away from areas of land in Rossport that could be in the future developed for housing.  And I take one example between Leenaveney and Gob a tSalin, which is where Willy Corduff's house is now located.  I notice that the pipe is actually brought right up, right up towards the road there, and running right along the road.  So, it automatically then bars anyone in the future and whoever owns that land, I'm not exactly sure, but that land can never really be developed in the future anymore because the pipeline is running along it. 
There is a big stretch of land there from Noel's house over as far as Willy Corduff's house.  

The pipeline too is also very close as well to houses in Gortachreagher.  Further over they are close to the mouth of, or at the end of the Glenamoy River.  And I think that it should be also very closely looked at to moving the pipeline away, as I say, as far as possible, so as to make sure that future development of housing for people, young people, anybody, either the families or the children of the families in Rossport, or people who want to move into the community, if that could be moved out, sites could be sold as well, if they were allowed planning permission.  But under the current proposed status of this pipeline planning permission would not be granted.  

(4) I call on the recommendation to be made in the Safety Audit that the gas bar level, or the speed of gas, is what I understand in the pipeline, should be as low as possible.  And I would say it should be the same level of gas, or the same speed of gas, that flows through a Bord Gais pipeline.  

This has been an extremely huge worry among people about the level of pressure in this pipeline.  How fast does this gas travel?  And we have heard that it has a capacity for 345 bar, and I know that what has been considered in the past is roughly around the 160/150, something like that, which people are still very, very concerned on.  If my knowledge is correct, I think that Bord Gais is something in the region of about 80.  Even though, I'm not exactly 100% sure, but I think that that should be closely looked at as well by you, Advantica, in making a recommendation to reduce the bar level even further of this unprocessed gas which is going up to Bellanaboy.  

(5) I call on Advantica also to assess the risk levels of the pipeline in the event of a rupture, a breakage, or a leak in the pipeline.  What is the likelihood of an explosion ever happening?  This should also be brought in; what would happen in the case of an explosion?  What effect would the explosion have on the immediate area of the pipelines and beyond?
Now, we've heard some examples from you, sir, today with regard to the potential of that.  And I would like to see that being examined in even more detail and scenarios also being put in.  That if there was a an explosion in the pipeline what exactly would happen?  What is the level of, if you like to call it, incineration, and how dangerous would it actually be?  

(6) My sixth point, and this relates to what was raised earlier with regard to these fail‑safe valves.  I note that there are five proposed.  I would propose that as many fail‑safe valves or stop‑valves be placed in the pipe as possible.  And I would even go as far as to say, put in a stop‑valve maybe every 
100 metres.  So if there is a rupture, or a leakage in the pipe, then at least the stop‑valves would immediately be closed, or would immediately close the pipeline, and that leakage would then be contained within that 100 metres.  Again, increasing the safety of the pipeline and reducing the event, or the possibility of an explosion.  

(7)  I would also like, Point No. 7, Advantica to determine in their report and stand over, and clearly stand over, their determination or their recommendations that the pipeline proposed by Shell and its partners is of the highest and latest technology available in the world today. 
You as being the experts here, as you discussed earlier in your backgrounds, I'm sure that you have an excellent knowledge of pipelines and that you should be able to determine that and stand by that.  If it isn't, then please say so and make recommendations then as to what would be better and demand or recommend that this be used then for the entire upstream pipeline.  

(8) My eight point, is again with regard to probably the Technical Advisory Group and the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources and the Developer, that more explanation and clear explanation with regard to the pipeline needs to be done.  In particular, its composition, the, material that the pipe is made up of.  

And, I've also seen it myself in recent committee meetings, that there are differences between that and a typical Bord Gais pipeline.  I don't know how many people in the community actually realise how thick, for example, this pipe is and maybe have not seen it.  I think that this should also be looked at as well and maybe explained to the people, particularly to each and every single resident of Glengad, Pullathomas, Aughoose, Leenamore, Rossport, Gortachreagher, all these villages which will be, or are, very close to the pipeline area.  

(9) Point No. 9 I have here, is I would ask also that Advantica determine if the proposed method of laying the pipeline and associated material is sufficient to maintain stability of the pipeline throughout the entire route.

I say this is particularly important in areas where the pipeline is going through bog land and it is quite a bit, particularly from Gob a tSalin where Willy Corduff's house is, and over toward Gortachreagher, there's a lot of bog land there.  And of course, it's going through bog land as well from Gortachreagher right up towards, or right into the terminal.  And in some areas there is some very, very deep bog there.  

And bog land, I think I would personally describe myself, is not very stable material and moving bog, I presume, would also possible cause the pipe as well to move and could also result as well in breakage's and possibly even corrosion as well.  And I'd like to make sure that you have that covered as well in your report, please.  

(10) One other suggestion, Point No. 10 for me, would be for you to make a recommendation to lay the pipe deeper into the ground than where it is being currently proposed.  Maybe that would also help to enhance the safety of the pipe.  I believe it's roughly in the region of 1 ‑ 1.3 metres that it would be laid into the ground.  And why not put it down a little bit more deeply so that the deeper it is, the safer it could be as well?  

(11) In the event of the pipeline been given the go‑ahead any temporary or proposed permanent compounds which need to be set up which have been already set up, or need to be further set up must have, in my opinion, proper planning permission, or at least have a legal opinion from the planning authorities, Mayo County Council and/or An Bord Pleanala that planning permission is not required.  

This is something that has raised a lot of annoyance among local people, particularly with the compound in Rossport and to a certain extent the compound that was there for a few months in Glengad, that people said, and quite rightly so, that planning permission should have been sought for these.  And before any compounds come in, in the future, or indeed with the current Rossport compound that planning permission should be sought for it, or that the legal opinion is there, that it's not needed.  This has not been done to date.  

(12) I would also ask, and I think this would be a very interesting role as well for Advantica and indeed the TAG also to determine, is to make a determination as to the what the loss in value of houses and property in Rossport and other villages will be when the pipeline is laid.  And when there this gas pipeline running through the villages it will have, in my opinion, an effect and probably a disastrous effect, on the property values of the lands and the houses on which it is nearby.  

And I think that this needs to be looked at very, very clearly and assessors brought in to determine what would be then the new the market value of a house in Rossport, or indeed in Glengad once this pipeline is in place.  And I think that this needs to be looked at closely and appropriate compensation as well should be paid as well to these landowners and house owners, should the pipe get the go‑ahead.  

And I know that compensation has already been paid to some people to date, but I'm not sure if it genuinely reflects the loss in value of houses and land in the open market today.  Particularly in the current Ireland that we have today of houses running into more than 100,000 Euro.  And that is also the same as well here Erris.  

(13) I ask or call on Advantica and the Technical Advisory Group to make a full presentation of its findings and its minor reports to all the residents living along the pipeline route from Glengad to Rossport to Gortachreagher, as well as the villages on the other side of the bay, Barnacellew, Pullathomas, Aughoose and Leenamore, that as soon as that is done that, again, the process of an open public presentation of the findings be carried out.  

And I do welcome as well that once the Draft Report is available that we can also then make submissions to that as well.  But once the final report is in place that the gentlemen come along again from Advantica to present these findings.  

(14) One of the major problems that occur too over the recent months was the element of traffic management in the area.  And while I found that there was probably quite a good traffic management plan in operation, for the Bellanaboy terminal site, right up to the Bord na Mona Srahmore site where the peat is being deposited, there was a very poorly functioning, if at all, existent traffic management plan for the other villages surrounding the upstream pipeline.  And particularly with Rossport, this a major, major point and a right point of contention, but also as well for the villages of Aughoose, Pullathomas, Glengad and even too to Glenamoy.
  

Several lay‑by's will need to be filled to ensure the smooth and uninterrupted flow of traffic in the area and also roads will need to be widened properly.  I suppose we are very, very proud of the fine road we have from Bellanaboy going up to Srahmore.  It would be nice to see similar roads as well down towards Rossport because the situation is; there's only one road into Rossport.  

The situation could happen that if you're delivering pipes or bringing in these pipes into Rossport that if somebody needs to get out quickly in an emergency and one of these trucks breaks down on that road, then there's next to no other avenue to get out of the village.  And that needs to be, before any further works are undertaken, that a proper management plan is devised by Mayo County Council and by the Technical Advisory Group or the Department of Marine to be able to put this in place.  That's because to avoid the danger in the case of emergencies.  

(15) My next point is also related to the traffic management plan, that Shell and it partners should compensate home owners who experience structural damage to their homes ‑‑ these are houses that are very, very close to the roads ‑‑ as a result of the movement of heavy goods such as pipes and containers which have transported on these local roads.  They cannot cope with such heavy loads.
MR. VERBRUGGEN:


Sorry, Gerard, could you 






just slow down a small bit for the stenographers.  

MR. Mc DONNELL:  

Sorry, I'll just repeat 






No. 15 again then.  

(15) So Shell and it partners must compensate home owners who experience structural damage to their houses as result of the movement of heavy goods such as a pipes and containers which are being transported on local roads.  These local roads cannot cope with such heavy loads.  

The road, for example, where Gate 2 of the terminal is located, right down to Aughoose and further back to Glengad, as well as all roads from Glenamoy Bridge right down towards Rossport, and into Rossport need major attention.  They already need major attention because there's been movement already on those roads with trucks and transportation of loads and heavy goods due to previous traffic movements.  And I'd like to see that also being looked at very closely and also a proper traffic management plan for those villages in place.  

(16) Another element too that I'd like ask, No. 16, this is also I think too specifically for the Technical Advisory Group is that the Irish State in the form of, for example, the Government Department such as the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources or a State Agency belonging to it, must take full responsibility for this pipe.  

This is something which is has not really happened.  I do not know who, besides the Developer, in the Irish State, who would be responsible or have responsibility, or liability for this pipeline should anything occur in the form of leakage, explosions, or the like.  At the moment there seems to be a lack of responsibility or liability with regard to ownership of the pipe once it is in place.  The Department or Agency must be held liable for the pipe during its entire lifetime.  

And I feel it should hire independent engineers to carry out constant visits of the pipeline, to monitor it, and conduct checks of the pipe, and report back to the Government or State Agency should it find any abnormalities.  Its task will also be to make sure that the pipeline is being maintained to the highest standards; that of course, would be by the Developer, and that there is no corrosion or leaks occurring.  

(17) No. 17 is another point I'd like to bring to the Technical Advisory Group, again something through the whole process over the last number of years as to how these Compulsory Purchase Orders for the lands in Glengad and in Rossport over to Gortachreagher and Leenamore actually took place. 

And I think we in the community deserve a thorough explanation as to, particularly the people in the parish in Kilcommon‑Erris on how the Compulsory Purchase Orders for the pipeline in Glengad, Rossport, Gortachreagher, Leenamore were established.  Also an explanation should been given by the Department of Communications, Marine and Natural Resources on why the compulsory acquisition process of land in these villages was handed over to the Developer in the instance.  

Now, I know that when a new road is being built somewhere throughout the country, that it would be not be a developer who is building the road, who would be in charge of actually acquiring lands along the road for the roads to be widened or developed.  That would be left up to either the local authorities, such as the local council, or a group like the National Roads Authority.  And this didn't really happen here, as far as I can see.  And I need an explanation as to why this was done differently here. 

And the local people living along the route should have had also the opportunity in which to make submissions and lodge appeals to this whole process.  Because what's happening here, and also with people living around the terminal area, it's changing their lives forever and the lives of their children in generations to come with this pipe then running through. 

As I said earlier, it devalues property and houses, and it will also have an effect as well on Erris, in my opinion.  I think for such an extraordinary project like this to take place, why didn't, in the process of the Compulsory Purchase Orders, did the Government not give the chance, or an opportunity, for appeals, or for a proper appeals process to take place where people could object.  

(18) This is a point that I have just written in the last number of minutes and one that I completely agree with my college here, with Eddy Ó Duibhir of the Erris Inshore Fishermen's Association with regard to the outlay pipe. 

Being as I will be eventually living in Glengad and many of the people who are living in Glengad are very worried about what is happening in Broadhaven Bay that the outlay pipe which is taking basically anything which is the rest material, or whatever is leftover once the gas has been refined, will be taken back out.  And I think as far as I am concerned, I feel that it is almost too near where it's located, to near to Broadhaven Bay.  Basically if anything comes into Broadhaven Bay that it doesn't go out, it just goes around and around and around in circles. 
And I think that it should be also considered as well that the pipe which takes out this dirty material is brought out as far as possible away from land, away from the local area, and away from Broadhaven Bay.  And if at all possible should be actually brought out back out to the well again where it was got from in the fist place.  

(19) My final point today is, I think, one that is directly for the Minster to deal with, with the Developer.  I'd like to call also on the Minster and the Technical Advisory Group to make recommendations to the Developer to undertake a major investment programme in the local community in the parish to Kilcommon‑Erris, and indeed in Erris in general.  It's a huge and unbelievable feeling, a feeling of being abused and misused with regard to this huge big multi, multi, multi‑million Euro project coming into the area.  

And it's fine to able to say, and I support from the point of view that it is for the good of the country because the country gets natural gas brought into the country, but at the same time the whole barony of Erris is basically taking this big responsibility for taking this gas in, refining it, and then sending it down towards Castlebar and Galway and into the national grid of the country.

I think that there should be something to, in a form of compensation, to the local area, and I would say particularly the majority of that to the parish of Kilcommon‑Erris.  This investment should be to significantly increase, I would say, for example, there is already existing a Corrib Gas Fund.  I think that this Corrib Gas Fund should be significantly increased to the tunes of the many, many millions of Euro in which to be able to put into social projects, economic projects, educations projects, infrastructure based projects in the parish of Kilcommon.  

My proposal would be that the fund would begin with an input of 20 million Euro to be put into this particular fund, and then added to by the Developer, and indeed other groups if they want to, to the tune of at least one million Euro a year, over the course of the entire project. 

This is not putting a price on the particular project, but at least it's a signal, a signal by the Developer, a signal by the Government as well, that this needs to be done.  That something, a signal to the local people here, who live here and who live hard lives in this area.  Also the same as everybody in the country pay their mortgages, try to work jobs, and all this kind of thing in the west coast of Mayo, that this would be a good impetus for a major investment programme for the area.  Because we haven't had too much of that over the last 30, or 40, or 50 years, or indeed since the foundation of the State.  

I think that's it.  I hope that my points will be taken on board by both Advantica and the Technical Advisory Group.  And I will send these to you by e‑mail over the next day or two, so that they're there available for you on e‑mail.  Thank you.

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. GERARD Mc DONNELL 

CHAIRMAN: 



Gerard, thank you very much 






for, I must say, a comprehensive list of submissions and observations.  I would like to go through a few of them with you.  Before I start, can I ask you first of all, I know you have a number of sheets of documents there and I am conscious that the lady's who are looking after the stenography will have had a difficulty in knowing the various locations that you have mentioned, locations that are familiar to you in terms of town lands, and bridges, and roads, and parishes, and whatever.  So, I wonder if you could make a copy of that available.  We can have it photocopied shortly and we can give it to her so that she will have it.  I have to say that I have heard of places this afternoon that I haven't heard before and it would be of considerable assistance to me.  

You obviously have been involved in this wearing a number hats, as it were.  Can I ask you where is your home in relation to Rossport village?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


If you know where Willy 






Corduff's house is.

CHAIRMAN: 



I am afraid I do not, I 






know where Rossport is, but I do not know where the individual homes are.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


It's at the end of Aughoose 






just before you come to Leenamore.  I can show it to you on the map.  It is directly across, it is where my parents live.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Yes, I see it now, it has 






been pointed out to me.  Now, the first point I think you made is that they would look at the option of an offshore location.  

My understanding is that Broadhaven Bay is a Special Area of Conservation.  In terms of building anything on it creates a problem obviously.  Have you any view as to where such an offshore facility could be built, assuming that it can be built; where?  I do not know.  Do you have any view?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


To tell you the truth, no, 






I don't.  I don't know exactly, I don't enough about the waters around.  I certainly know, and I wouldn't tolerate having it in Broadhaven Bay or Glengad where I, for example, would be living, just as much as many of the people or the people of Bellanaboy living in those areas probably also don't like, or don't enjoy the fact that it is right under their noses.  

Probably wherever you locate it, it's probably not going to be, for anybody, a happy and healthy solution.  At the same time, I don't know enough, I hear a lot of very good people who come out with arguments who say that an offshore facility is possible.  And I remember five years ago, 
Mícheál Ó Shín as well also saying the technology is there to give it, put it out onshore.  That's okay and I accept that, but I still think that the community needs to understand from the Developer and also from the Department of the Marine as to, you know, why it can't, because basically that's been the story all along.  

And I'm fine to accept that, if I understand that it's for safety reasons and all that kind of thing and the onshore facility or the Bellanaboy terminal is the safest option.  Again, it's something I would have to accept.  I have to accept already that, you know, and I put in submitted objections too, like many other people over the years, in to Mayo County Council and An Bord Pleanala as to why I felt that the onshore facility in Bellanaboy was not good, was not right, was not the right space, was not the right area, the Erris wasn't the right place in which to bring this in.  

But, I accept of course now that they have got their planning permission.  So again, it is probably this discussion is possibly redundant, but at the time the arguments are still going there that an offshore facility is the better option.  And I would like to see more of the Department of the Marine and indeed the Developer also say that, yes, it is the better option to have it inland because of the offshore facility not being safe or whatever.  I don't fully know.  I'm sure that many of the local people would not be able to explain either why the onshore facility is the better option compared to the offshore facility. 

CHAIRMAN: 



Do I understand you to say 






that so far as you personally is concerned, and speaking generally, that no particular alternative offshore site has been located or identified as being, perhaps, a preferable site; it could be built there.  They are not deep waters and it is relatively sheltered...(INTERJECTION)
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


In my experience and the 






information I've had over the last number of years, I don't know of any site being identified around the area of Erris.  I have heard suggestions about placing it in shallow water.  I don't know where there is much shallow water around the area of Erris.

CHAIRMAN: 



That is an interesting 






question, I do not know either.  You know this area, it is your backyard, indeed, both backyards, if you like.  But is there shallow water in the general area of northwest Mayo that is outside Special Area of Conversation where this could conceivably be constructed?  

MR. Ó DUIBHIR: 


Yeah, there are plenty of 






shallow waters between here and at the well‑head.  There is 300 ‑‑ what is it ‑‑ there's 300, 30 metres, 10 metres quite close to between here and the well‑head.  There's plenty of places where they can be put.  We can give you a location within the next day or two, if you want one.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry?

MR. Ó DUIBHIR:  


We could give you a 






location within the next day or two, if you want one.  

CHAIRMAN: 



No, I just wondered given 






that it had been mentioned whether people were able to say; 'that is an obvious place for it, it is outside the Special Area of Conservation and it is shallow water and why is that place not being selected'.

MR. Ó DUIBHIR:  


Anywhere off there, 






anywhere, the Islands, out to 10 miles or 20 miles, there is plenty of shallow water there.  Mr. Chairman, could I make a request of you before I finish since I have a microphone in my hand?

CHAIRMAN: 



I will come back to you 






when we finish. 
Mr. Mc Donnell has not yet finished.  You have already had a few minutes and I will give you more time later.  

The second option that you suggested was to move the pipeline further away from the houses in Rossport.  I have visited Rossport.  I do not profess to know or understand the entire line, but I tried to look at it on maps and see what I could see on the ground.  My feeling from what I saw was that there was a distance of perhaps 300 or 400 yards from the road at the compound, or at the back of the compound, or between the compound and the water, a relatively narrow strip of land along which the pipe presumably is to be laid.  I know that there is one house, for example, right down at the very edge of the water.  Now, where do you suggest that that pipe could be moved to?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I'm not sure if I could 






give you an undertaking as to where it could be.  I just know that at the moment I think that it's in the wrong area in many parts of Rossport because it's 70 metres or, I believe that Monica Muller's is something in the region of 
86 metres, I think, from the proposed pipe which to me is still too near.  

So again, I'm not sure whether I should, in my capacity here, start offering suggestions as to where it could go.  Possibly there aren't many alternatives as to where it could go but, you know, I think it's worth looking at.

CHAIRMAN: 



I am certain that it will 






be done.  I would be astounded if it is not done because it is so obvious that, quite frankly, people would be in breach of the duty that they have if they failed to look at that, in my view.  

I thought that, perhaps, you might be able to say; 'well, if you moved it half‑a‑mile to the left, or to the right, or to the north, or to the south' there would no houses in that general area.  That is all I had in mind.  

The next issue, I think, that you rose was that the pressures should be as low as possible.  I am sure that the consultants will deal with that.  Also, the risk levels in the event of a rupture, what exactly would happen, that was mentioned this morning and I am sure that they will deal with that.  

Fail‑safe valves, that has been mentioned and I am sure they will also deal with that and perhaps take on board your suggestion or consider at least your suggestion that there be more fail‑safe valves, whether at intervals of 100 metres or otherwise.  

They have been asked to confirm that the technology that is being used is essentially state of the art technology and that no doubt is something that they will cover in their report.  The thickness of pipeline etcetera, the composition of the pipeline, I am sure that that will be covered.  

You had a concern about the laying of the pipeline, the method of laying it and whether or not it might move because of bog movement and all that, I would have thought they would deal with that, because not only because they have seen the ground conditions in which it will be laid, but because it has been flagged here today as an issue that should be addressed, and I would imagine that they might deal with that.  In the same way, I would have thought that the depth at which the pipe was to be laid, whether it is 1.3 metres or deeper, is something that they should deal with. 

The question of compounds is something I think they should bear in mind.  And I have no doubt they will deal with this.  
The twelfth issue that I have noted here was the loss in the value of the houses when the pipeline is laid.  Have you any idea, even a ballpark idea, of how many houses would be involved, for example?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Well, what are there, 30, 






40 house in Rossport alone.  Probably about the best of, at least in the part of Glengad, which is a few hundred metres of pipe is going to take, there are at least ten houses nearby.

CHAIRMAN: 



Are you talking about 50 






houses, 80 houses, 100 houses?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


May be, may be, but I mean 






we also have to include as well the many, many houses too that are down in Bellanaboy and those areas around the terminal area too.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I accept that, but roughly 






just to get an idea, are you talking perhaps 200 houses?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


80 to 100.

CHAIRMAN: 



Of that order?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Yes.

CHAIRMAN: 



Not more than 200?  

MR. Mc DONNELL:


No.  
CHAIRMAN: 



I am not trying to tie you 






in any sense, I just want to get some sort of a feeling or whether you are talking about 50 or 500 or 5,000 or whatever. 
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I'd say around 100 that are 






directly along the pipeline route.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Or in reasonable proximity 






to it? 

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Or very close to the 






terminal.  

CHAIRMAN: 



The terminal is in 






reasonable proximity to those, or as some people would see it unreasonable proximity?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Within a few hundred 






metres.  

CHAIRMAN: 



You talked about traffic 






management as Point No. 14 and you suggested that there was an example where a road had been provided to a pretty high standard.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


The roads between 






Bellanaboy where the terminal is located and Srahmore which is near Bangor.

CHAIRMAN: 



I understand, coming across 






by the lake?  
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Coming around Carrowmore 






Lake and going through the villages of Glencullen, Cluaintacoille and those areas up toward where the Bord na Mona site is.

CHAIRMAN: 



You come directly out at 






the Bord na Mona site?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Yeah.  
CHAIRMAN: 



That is the road that you 






are talking about...(INTERJECTION) 
MR. Mc DONNELL: 


That road was redeveloped 






earlier this year.  It was widened, it was significantly improved from what it had been before to be able to withstand truck movements of many tons to be able to take this peat and I think it is probably the best road in Erris today.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I can only agree with you, 






I travelled it yesterday and I set off with some trepidation armed with a map and wondering what would happen if I got a puncture halfway across and then found that it was a first class road.  Who built that road as a matter of interest?  

CHAIRMAN: 



I can only agree with you.  






I travelled it yesterday and I set off with some trepidation armed with a map and wondering what would happen if I got a puncture halfway across and then found that it was a first class road.  Who built that road as a matter of interest?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Mayo County Council.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Do I understand you to say 






that the other roads along which traffic will have to travel should be upgraded.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Absolutely. 
CHAIRMAN: 



And if not to the same 






standard at least that the lay‑by's would be provided.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Lay‑bys provided, road 






widened, road strengthened and a lot of work needs to be done.  There is evidence already of some roads particularly, I would say from Aughoose back through to Glengad, where the land fall site, and down in Rossport as well, with truck movements, with large truck movements, there have already occurred and there haven't really been that many, but the one's that have already shown some damages to the local road.  

So I think that before anything further proceeds that something in the nature of what was done between Bellanaboy and Srahmore would also have to be done for those roads in the area to be able to cope with what's going to be huge increased traffic through these areas.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Again, and this is for my 






own personal information, when I went to Rossport yesterday I went out the Carraigtighe Road off the north coast road and turned left.  I turned left again following some signs that were indicative of, I think, of some feeling of a lot of people in the area and I arrived at Rossport.  But is that the direct or only route into Rossport?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


That's the only route into 






Rossport.  When you come from Glenamoy and you drive down probably the best part of six or seven miles, make a left‑hand turn, that's the only road into Rossport. 
CHAIRMAN: 



You suggested that there 






should be compensation for the owners of houses who have experienced structural damage?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


That I'm taking as a 






personal example because, again, we are undertaking at the moment that contact with Mayo County Council and Shell with regard to my parent's house in Aughoose, where there was in June a number of major truck movements bringing pipes and containers back to the site into the land fall site in Glengad.  

And our house is very close to the road and I know there are a number of other houses along the way that are also very close.  And we are having that investigated by an engineer at the moment because we have noticed cracks up through the wall and in the structure.  And the road itself is probably not able to take such traffic anyway. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Has anybody done a survey 






of the houses that are, or are likely, or could be affected, in the future if the project goes ahead?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Not to my knowledge, no.  






I think what has been done through Mayo County Council is a survey of the roads before this whole development began.  They took a company from Galway, I believe, who carried out a survey of the roads and then look then maybe a number of months later, or a year later, when the development is completed and compare the one with the other to see what was the level or extent of damage.  That is in progress. 
CHAIRMAN: 



In your view, has that 






survey been extensive enough to cover all properties that are likely to be damaged in the manner that you have suggested?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I'm not sure about 






properties, Mr. Chairman, but I think definitely the road has.  As far as I know, I don't think anything has been done with regard to properties, but it's an issue that we will be raising with the Council and the Developer over the next few weeks.  

And again, I'm sure it's an issue for other people, there is another house further back the road in Aughoose which is right on the road.  And I would be surprised if there were multiple truck movements passing by that house that it wouldn't feel something. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Perhaps the last matter 






that I wanted to ask you about is your suggestion that there be an undertaking to invest money in Erris generally.  You mentioned in Kilcommon specifically to significantly increase the contribution.  You indicated that there is already a body in place which is collecting money and administering money. 

MR. Mc DONNELL:  

It's not an body as such, 






Mr. Chairman, it was set up as part of the planning condition of An Bord Pleanala that a fund be set up, roughly in the region of one million Euro be placed into this.  

This was particularly with the terminal site, that peat which was taken from the terminal and brought to Srahmore, that for every cubic metre of that peat, that 1 Euro would go into this fund.  And roughly it's been estimated that there would be roughly around 450,000 cubic metres of peat going to Srahmore.  And that this equivalent amount of 450,000 Euro would be used in the villages and the areas along this route, this haulage route, as we call it, from Bellanaboy up to Srahmore.  

Any remaining money up to the level of one million Euro would be used for area around the upstream pipeline area.  My argument is, and I think it's fine to start with that amount, but I think with regard for the parish taking the brunt of this amount of work, this development over the next number of years and into the future, that there should be, I think, that this fund should be beefed up.  And the Developer and other groups as well seize the opportunity now in which to set up a major investment group for the area. 
CHAIRMAN: 



What body was designated or 






established to deal with the fund that is going to be generated if things progress, the 450?

MR. Mc DONNELL:  

The body that will be over 






it is one of these monitoring committee groups that I mentioned earlier, the Project Monitoring Committee.  And the chairman of Mayo County Council probably will be the person who will appoint a group or a committee to oversee this fund, with the help of Shell and with the help of local community representatives and other local groups as well. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Is it envisaged that that 






body will select the areas and subjects on which monies will be expended?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I think the areas in 






general have been decided upon by the chairman of the Council.  But again, because the project stopped a number of months ago no progress has been made on that area since.  

So I would envisage that if the project continues, or re‑continues, or redevelop, that this fund will be back up.  Then local community groups then, for example, can submit projects or submit proposals for projects where funding may be sought from this fund.  But my contention is that one million Euro won't go very far around here.  
CHAIRMAN: 



You have suggested a figure 






of 20 million plus one million per year.  What would you envisage that money being spent on?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I think there's a lot of 






various different things.  I think Aughoose, for example, the village where I am needs a community centre.  I am Rossport could use funds as well for the local schools, the local colaiste.  I think there can be a number of ‑‑ one group has thought about putting in a children's play area.  I think there's a lot of various different community based facilities like that could be built and are needed.  Lighting maybe for the streets of a particular village; all different types of things.  

Maybe also some kind of a facility for the larger villages where there maybe some kind of a small industrial estate for businesses to move into, an innovation centre, a football and training pitch for Pullathomas, for example.  Protection works for the hills of Glengad from future landslides.  There's loads of examples. 
CHAIRMAN: 



All right.  Well, thank you 






very much indeed.  I would appreciate if you would make that available to me.  If you are here until the end of the meeting, I would like for you to outline to me perhaps the parishes you mentioned just to give me a general indication of them.  I know their local name and town lands and they mean a lot and people here will identify with them immediately.  But I would like some assistance in that if possible.  Mr. Hanna?

MR. HANNA: 



Mr. Chairman, can I 






respond, I have some clarification on some of these matters. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Hanna would like to say 






something in the context of what we have talked about.  

MR. HANNA: 



Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  






This is just a clarification on some of the points raised where I am to give clarification.  I think it would be helpful whether or not as a fact and so on.  

The first one really was, for the record it's important to differentiate between the parameters of speed and pressure that you started your submission with.  And the numbers that you mentioned were pressure parameters rather than speed because gas velocity is a parameter that the consultants take on board as part of the detailed technical analysis.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Sorry, Mr. Hanna, my 






contention is and my point was with regard to producing pressure as much as possible.

Mr. Hanna:



Yes.  Just for everybody's 






understanding, it's a pressure point.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Well certainly from my 






understanding, perhaps you might in words of one syllable just clarify what you are saying the difference is and what the significance is because, as I say, I would like to know.  I am not quite sure I understand the distinction that you are making between pressure and speed.

Mr. Hanna:



Well I think it is probably 






simplest for all concerned if we forget about speed.  Like your comments were made concerning pressure.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I was equating speed with 






pressure, yes. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I see.  So you are talking 






about pressure; speed does not enter into it.  Is that right; are you happy with that?

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Yeah.  I think what 






Mr. Hanna is saying is that what I was actually meaning was pressure.  It is pressure, the amount of pressure.  Of course I think it relates to speed in that if there was a rupture or a leak in the pipe, then what is the speed by which this gas will come out and cause some trouble.  But I believe, again in my limited knowledge of this, I believe that the relative level of bar relates to the pressure which I am probably equating with speed. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well are you happy with 






what Mr. Hanna has said?  

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Yes.

Mr. Hanna:



Secondly, you made a 






statement at the outset that Shell and DCMNR are pushing for an onshore terminal.  For the record, my Minister would want me to say that it's not DCMNR's position that there must be an onshore or, indeed, an offshore or any kind of terminal.  The Government's position ‑‑ my Department's position is that we examined the proposals submitted to us by the developer and issued consents as the case may be based on the specific proposals.  

Now, this Safety Review has a very limited remit ‑‑ I'll come back to that later.  But it doesn't automatically consider the issue of offshore versus onshore.  However if the safety consultants find during the course of their work that the specific proposal doesn't comply in some sense with the relevant international standards of best practice, then it's entirely up to them to make recommendations.  You could in the theoretical sense see that there might be recommendations in that respect.  But it's not the Government's position.  

The Government is neutral on the wider design implications.  The Government's position is to examine the specific proposals in my case for safety and in other Department's cases for environmental and other factors and see whether they meet standards of best practice or rules or laws as appropriate.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


Can I make a comment on 






that Mr. Hanna?  I think it is a pity then that at the time a number of years ago that maybe the Government then didn't push for what are the cases for an onshore and the cases for an offshore, in other words ‑‑ because I'm sure that the Government in the Petroleum Affairs division of the Department of Marine would have realised or should have realised that this was bound to create ‑‑ one of the biggest infrastructural developments ever in the history of the State was bound to create a huge amount of controversy and that therefore at the time ‑‑ and this is what I'm calling for now, is for the developer now to make the clear case to the local people as to why is the onshore facility better than the offshore, that maybe that question should have been dealt with a number of years ago so that people understood.  

Okay, the developer and the Department of the Marine or the Government, they're fine with that, that you cannot put it offshore, you cannot put it out in shallow water or outside Erris, and that therefore we have to go for the onshore one, and that this particular issue was allowed to go to run and let run for the last number of years.  

And in my opinion it still hasn't been fully and completely clarified by the developer then, if not by you.  But I think that it's something that maybe in future project proposals in the future, be they something like this or anything else, that the Government should maybe take the chance with the proposer of the development then to sit down and say what are the current alternatives and why aren't you using those.

Mr. Hanna:



I'm going to note your 






comment and move onto the next observation.  Your recommendation was that we should revisit in the scope of this work the issue of compounds and planning permission or get a legal opinion as to whether or not they required planning permission.  That is a maybe a matter for an arm of Government, but it's outside the scope of my review completely and therefore, Mr. Chairman, I have to with respect say that it is important to put on the record that I disagree with your apparent conclusion that the consultants must consider this within their review.  

You made two directional comments.  One was in the case of compounds, that the consultants would consider this in their review, and that is absolutely outside the scope of this work, I regret to say.  

The issue that the State must take responsibility for safety, my Minister would wish me to say that he is on record as saying that he and his Department are responsible for the safety of the onshore upstream section of the pipeline.  The Dáil record of 4 October is the latest occasion of when he put that on record.  

There is some confusion because there is an issue of State agencies and State bodies.  Now some of the language has not been terribly clear, but it is the case that the agencies with responsibility for downstream sections, the Bord Gáis sections of the pipeline, are clearly identified and they do not have jurisdiction in the upstream.  The Minister, himself, has jurisdiction and that's why we exist.  It's part of his exercising of his responsibilities in this area.  So it's not the case that nobody is taking State responsibility, but it's correct to say that there isn't an agency like or EPA or CER or HSA responsible.  It's the Minister himself, until legislation may change that.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


I'd like to welcome that, 






Mr. Hanna, and at the same time to say that that is not very clear to many of the local residents with regard to this level of responsibility even though the Minister, I understand, as you say, has said that already recently in the Dáil.  I still think that that's not completely clear among the local people and that should be addressed.

Mr. Hanna:



I do take that point and 






I'd like to take this opportunity to ask all of you to assist with this process.  The Minister has taken responsibility personally and that's one reason why the Technical Advisory Group exists. 

The next point is, Mr. Chairman, the routing of the pipeline where you said that we, collectively, that is the Safety Review team and the consultants, would be in breach of duties not to consider moving the pipeline or options for moving the pipeline.  I have to be very clear on the scope of the review...(INTERJECTION). 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, I do not think I 






have said that.  If I did, it was not what I intended.  What I intended was to say that they would have to take account of the line of the pipeline having regard to the proximity of the houses.

Mr. Hanna:



If that's what you meant, 






Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry.  That's not what you said. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, my apologies then.  






that is what I mean.

Mr. Hanna:



And for everybody's 






clarification, because it is important you understand this, the Review is looking at the proposal as submitted.  It's not looking at all possible options for the routing of the pipeline.  The scope is limited, and I know it doesn't meet all of your concerns.  I know that.  We are looking at the routing as submitted with the clarifications that we tried to make to Mr. Sweetman.  

If the Review discovers something unsatisfactory about that in terms of standards, laws, codes of practice, best practice, then it may be that a recommendation arises with regard to routing.  But it is not the case that all possible routings are being considered by the Review at the outset.  Other routings only arise if something deficient is discovered with the current proposal.

MR. Mc DONNELL: 


It may be discovered, 






Mr. Hanna, that 70 metres is not sufficient, that 70 metre distance away from each house.  That may turn out to be a determination by Advantica in this report or by you that this is not a sufficient distance away from each house; isn't that true?  

Mr. Hanna:



I'm not going to get into a 






debate on findings, but, yes, in principle, if that's a finding, then that a finding that may be made.  And if that's a finding that's made, then we have to consider the implications of that. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you.  Briefly please 






because there may be others who have already...(INTERJECTION).

Mr. ó duibhir:


Just to request that you as 






Chairman of this Review or whatever it is, to see to it that previous submissions made by concerned people and organisations would be made available to the consultants and to whoever is advising the Minister before they make their final report or a final decision on this project.  That's it.  
CHAIRMAN: 



My understanding is that 






all submissions that have been received and will be received will be considered, will be made available to the consultants and they will be considered by the Minister in due course and will be considered by the Technical Advisory Group.  

Mr. ó duibhir:


Thank you, I just wanted 






to...(INTERJECTION). 
CHAIRMAN: 



In fact, I will hand over 






to Mr. Hanna here before we conclude this everything I have received so that he can have it and can deal with it appropriately and can ensure that it is conveyed in due course.

Mr. ó duibhir:


And all previous 






submissions as well. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well I think, in fairness 






to Mr. Hanna, he did suggest that some submissions ‑‑ he believes that he probably has most of them but that some of them may have got mislaid.  And if they have, just to be sure to be sure, he invites people to send them in again.  I know that you have handed in a submission here with correspondence dated 5 October.

Mr. ó duibhir:


Yeah. 
CHAIRMAN: 



And that is clearly here, 






so you need not worry about it.  

Mr. ó duibhir:


We made a few other 






submissions as well. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well perhaps if you would 






have a word with Mr. Hanna afterwards and speak to him and identify the submissions and you can sort it out among yourselves and send him on a copy if necessary.  If he has them, great.  I mean, the idea is that the Minister would have everything.  There is nobody trying to hide anything or to ensure that it is not available or transparent.

Mr. ó duibhir:


Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, Mr. Hanna would like 






to add something to that.

Mr. Hanna:



Just to be absolutely 






clear, because I am aware that you will have made submissions a long time ago.  Those are not captured unless they were made after 10 August, they are not already in the system.  So we have no way of capturing submissions you may have made last year or six months ago.  It's submissions that have come in since 10 August that are automatically included.

Mr. ó duibhir:


That is 10 August 2005?  

Mr. Hanna:



Correct, yes, since 






the...(INTERJECTION). 

Mr. ó duibhir:


So I was misled earlier on 






when you told me that all submissions made were still available and would be passed over?  That's what I took from what you said, Mr. Hanna.

Mr. Hanna:



Those submissions made are 






still available, are still in the process, have been passed over where we have got them and will be published on the website.  But submissions that you made last year would not be.

Mr. ó duibhir:


No.  That was my earlier 






question and I was assured that submissions made ‑‑ I spoke in terms of four years ago and there was a review with the Minister.  And that's specifically what I spoke in terms of and you led me to believe that these would still be considered.

Mr. Hanna:



No.  I didn't understand 






from what you said earlier that you were talking about old submissions.  I'm sorry.  I had your recent submission in my hand whenever you made the comment.

Mr. ó duibhir:


What I made there is more 






or less a copy of what went to the Minister.  So we will be making a further submission to you. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well please do, if you 






would.  And if you have copies of them there, I'd be delighted to take them.  Or alternatively if you identify them or arrange to send them onto Mr. Hanna, please do.  That is what he wants.  That is why this meeting is being heard, so that you and other people here can make submissions and follow them up and send copies if necessary if you are not certain that they are already with the Technical Advisory Group.

Mr. ó duibhir:


Well I have now been told 






that any submission we made prior to August is not really available anymore, so we will have to resubmit our concerns.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman:



Thank you very much.

Mr. Hanna:



Sorry.  It's the language 






that's being used is continuing to confuse.  I can't say that they're not available, but they're not available to me.  They may still exist within the Department.  We can't consider anything that existed before the Technical Advisory Group was established and mandated to do this work.  So from 10 August when a public announcement was made inviting submissions, that's the start date.  

If you made a submission to the Minister, it may be in existence and being dealt with elsewhere in the Department.  But we can't take submissions before we were legally constituted and able to do so.

Mr. ó duibhir:


Our communication with the 






Minister has been ongoing for the past four years and we have gotten acknowledgments of our letters and nothing else.  So I take it now that whatever we submitted up until 10 August now has to be resubmitted.  Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, you have your hand 






up.  Do you want to say something?  Would you identify yourself again for the stenographer, please.



[submission] by captain aldridge


captain aldridge: 

Yes.  Thank you.  It's 






Pene Aldridge, a Mayo resident.  A gentleman over here mentioned about pipelines and a general concern, I understand, about the local people is the suitability and the safety of the actual pipeline itself.  Could I make a suggestion from a mere female who is not an engineer to all these gentlemen here that with modern technology and hopefully money, could you not consider, any of you gentlemen here, having a custom‑built pipeline with, I believe, a welded rib on the back of it to help stabilise and keep it as safe as, if you like, as safe as the pipeline these people have already got?  

Now I understand that the technology is there and the pipelines can be got.  Could you not take this into consideration when you are reviewing the safety of the actual pipeline itself whether you lay a new one, or whatever, you reroute it?  That's all I wanted to say. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well I am sure that is 






something can be considered.  Whether it is appropriate or not is a matter for the experts.  

Mr. Acton:



Sorry, mr. Chairman, I 






didn't quite catch the suggestion.  I am sorry.

Captain aldridge: 

We're talking about pipe 






safety here, the distance here whether it's the existing place now or whether you move it.  Now modern technology suggests that you can actually put in place custom‑built pipelines with a welded rib ‑‑ I don't know the technical terms for all of this, but I'm sure you know what I'm talking about.  It's custom‑built for the site, but it also has a welded rib across the top or the back to actually increase the safety and the stability of the pipeline.  

Now I have suggested, very politely, that if you are going to put this pipeline with a high pressure gas flowing through it across a bog, whether it's this side or the other side of the lake, would you please take on board to actually have that sort of pipeline to increase the safety and hopefully to help decrease the worry of the locals that have to live here when you have all gone off to your various other jobs in the future?  Thank you. 


[end] of submission of captain aldridge


CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.  






Anybody else want to make a...(INTERJECTION).

Dr. Aldridge:


Could I 






just...(INTERJECTION).

Chairman:



Sorry, you have had ‑‑ you 






were the first up and I think there may be others that may wish to say something.  Is there anybody else who has not made any submission who would like to make a contribution?  Mr. Sweetman:


I want to wind up.

Chairman:



Pardon?

Mr. Sweetman:


I want to make a wind up. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, no winding up now 






for the moment.  We are not going to wind up anything for the moment.  There is a lady there with her hand up beside you.  Would you mind giving your name please?  




[submission] by ms. Máire bhreathnach
  

ms. Bhreathnach:


My name ‑‑ well one of my 






names anyway ‑‑ is Máire Bhreathnach.  I live in a part of this planet we call Ballinroe in County Mayo.  

Chairman:



Ballinroe?

Ms. Bhreathnach:


Yes.  I would like if ‑‑ I 






thought this process would continue on until tomorrow but would I be right in thinking it won't?  
CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry?  

Ms. Bhreathnach:


I thought this process 






would continue tomorrow and that I'd get a sense of whether it will or not because I would rather speak tomorrow rather than today.  But if it's closing today then I'll... 
CHAIRMAN: 



Well as you can see, we are 






playing it a bit by ear really and I just do not know.  So if there is something that you cannot deal with now or that has to be dealt with another time, perhaps we will consider the situation.

Ms. Bhreathnach:


I would just like to say 






first of all about myself so you would understand what it is I am going to attempt to say.  I am at present, and for the rest of my life, I will be a student amongst other things, and I am at the moment learning to appreciate the universe and how the universe has evolved and has brought to birth planet earth, as well as many other planets, how earth has brought life into being and I happen to be one of those beings, I happen to be a member of the human species.  So I need to say that first.  

I know very, very, very little as compared to what is actually here to be known.  I think in the present context and in the context in which I live that earth has all of the wisdom that we need to live healthily and happily within the human condition.  So I need to say that first of all. 

Now if I could just say for a moment what I think Shell is proposing to do, and that's basically it says it wants to provide us with gas.  The process is a process of extraction so we are extracting gas from our planetary home.  

This is a terminal activity.  Somebody mentioned the likelihood of 30 years.  We need to remember that it took millions of years for this gas to evolve, oil, coal and so on, millions of years.  And we human beings, one species amongst very, very many species, have decided that we are going to extract it and we are going to get as much of it as we can just because we can do it, it's convenient and in the past has been cheap, relatively cheap ‑‑ that may change.  And we think nothing ‑‑ even if this were a good thing to do ‑‑ we are not at all thinking of the children of future generations.  I think this needs to be reflected on as we go through these weeks ahead.  

So the human species is taking, taking, taking, and it's not giving anything back.  There is no reciprocity whatsoever.  In fact we are taking something, we are changing it and we are returning something to the earth which earth really cannot deal with, and I'll go onto that in a moment.  

The second point I would like to make is ‑‑ and maybe if I could ask.  And if there isn't an answer, perhaps somebody could check it out.  I know it would be impossible for me because I wouldn't have the technical knowledge.  I wonder if we started from the very first instant that some human being thought about getting into this project right up until the point if it actually happened and was completed and that if all of the gas in question was used up, how many regulations is it going to take for it to do what we think we would like it to do, what we think it would be good for us to do?  I would love to know how many regulations, sub‑regulations and sub‑sub‑sub‑regulations.  

I think we need to know it because, for one thing, we seem to be measuring our intentions ‑‑ or Shell is measuring, in this instance, its intentions by what's not against the law.  

Now even if these laws are fulfilled ‑‑ and I'm certainly not getting any indication of that so far.  We're going up, over, around, behind, in front of the laws, it would seem to me, in many instances.  Now if these laws are fulfilled, they don't stop pollution; they simply slow it down.  And if they are slowed down, if you like ‑‑ we talk about this acceptable level for humans and very little consideration, if any, is given to the rest of the community of life.  

Now I know why that's happening, and basically I'll say it later on, we simply, it would seem to me, don't know who we are as yet.  And that's why I am a student of the universe, if you like.  I want to learn the story of the universe so that I will know my place, I'll know who I am and then I'll know my place and my role on this beautiful fragile planetary home that we are so blessed to have.  

I would like to say that I don't want ‑‑ yes, I would also say that I believe myself that the people who are living here, those most of all right beside the proposed pipeline, will never really be at ease no matter how much you say it's going to be okay.  I do believe what we humans do, particularly in something like this project, there will always be a risk no matter how small.  

I think if the risk is there, I can't live with it and I certainly don't want Shell to play, as it were, a lottery with the lives of these people and I don't want them to leave the legacy that it would seem to me that they are going to leave after 30 years when all is well and done according to them.  It's not for this place and it's not for any other place on the planet.  

What Shell do here in these coming years, if we allow them ‑‑ and I think we won't, I'm sure we won't actually ‑‑ then Shell can justify doing it somewhere else.  You know, it happens to be here in North Mayo and everything is grand.  And yes it is until something goes wrong, and that's too late. 

In this 21st century I hear a little bit about projects that are sustainable.  In my view, this particular project is anything but sustainable because, first of all, it's extractive so it's non‑renewable, and I really think we need to take this to heart.  It is nonrenewable.  

I would also like to ‑‑ you know, the project is the project.  I'm wondering how renewable are building materials, light and lighting, heating, power for the project?  I wonder about the waste, it has been mentioned here, different contaminants that have been mentioned here this morning.  

I question that this project should ever be taken on anywhere on the planet, especially in the 21st century in the light of all the advances that we have made in science and technology.  There are companies out there and they are just crying out for more and more help ‑‑ I guess financial more than anything ‑‑ from our Government, some people mentioned our guardians.  I'm not so sure that the Government is my guardian.  I have a very healthy, I would hope, distrust of my Government. 

The second thing I would like to say ‑‑ the third thing at this point ‑‑ is that if the project was renewable, which it is not, nature's laws are not being fulfilled.  We are not in keeping with nature ‑‑ and this is why I say we don't know who we are ‑‑ because I am part of nature and I don't seem to recognise that.  I seem to think, or Shell seems to think, that this planet, this environment, nature, the natural world, whatever we want to call it, is kind of the background.  I have all the inherent rights and values and everything else is there for me.  So, you see, we really are on a road we should never have taken.  
CHAIRMAN: 



Máire, I know you obviously 






have thought about this very carefully and you have very strong views about what is proposed, but we here are trying to deal with safety issues as distinct from the wider issue that you are addressing about renewability and everything like that.  

So if you have issues that you would like to address in relation to safety to those gentlemen on my right and on my left or if you have anything that you would like them to take on board, would you please address them and we will ask them to take them on board and then hopefully move onto some other people who, no doubt, would like to have their views heard?  

Ms. Bhreathnach:


Of course, yes.  But I 






think the message still ‑‑ obviously people are maybe hearing it for the first time, but basically what I am talking about really is, putting it another way, is actually safety because I am questioning the rightness of this whole project.  And definitely it is not safe, and it is not safe because the way earth functions is certainly not the way we are functioning.  And this Shell project is an absolute brilliant example of this.  So it's absolutely connected.  

You see, you have come here today, whoever set up this process today, and you have, if you like, you know (indicating) there's the frame so anything ‑‑ so again you have put a border, you have put a boundary, around what we may discuss here today.  As the statement stated this morning, all of this was done ‑‑ this ought to have been done way back there some years ago.  So I think while I understand what you are saying, I still think that, you know, it prevents people from really saying what they ought to have been able to say way back a few years ago.  

So if I could say with yourselves, would it be all right with you if I continued?  I won't be too much longer.  Would it be all right with you if I continued?  

General public: 


Yes.

Ms. Bhreathnach:


Because if it's okay with 






yourselves, with due respect, I think you will just have to listen if you don't want to.  Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: 



I have no difficulty 






listening and waiting as long as you chose to do so.  But just, please, on the safety issue and safety questions.

Ms. Bhreathnach:


All right, I'll move on.  






Then obviously from the safety issue and taking it from the broader sense, I will be asking again from start to finish how many chemicals are being used in this project?  How many of them have been tested?  

You see, we just presume the building goes up, the pipe is built, whatever energy is used, and we're not questioning that.  Now this needs to be done, certainly.  But the safety issue is a much, much broader issue and please don't confine anybody who wants to speak to it, please. 

So I am near enough to concluding.  So I want to state very clearly, and I would like this to be your context in your research even if it wasn't before and even if it's not given to you from the Government, that we can only know when we know.  

So I would be saying earth is primary.  We humans are a derivative.  The way we are functioning over the last few centuries, and particularly this one, is not in keeping with the way earth functions.  Earth has all the wisdom we need.  Earth is our greatest teacher if we listen.  Earth is extravagantly bountiful and generous and gives us everything we need.  And finally, I would say earth is sacred.  Earth brought us into being.  How dare we turn our back on her.  How dare we desecrate her.  

This place in North Mayo is just as sacred, not more or less, than Croagh Patrick or Knock or any other place of pilgrimage that you may wish to think of or to honour.  And so I am just simply concluding totally by saying and by inviting Shell to pack up, basically, and to go home.  

I don't trust you here with land or with our people, and I don't trust you with the sea or ocean and the rest of the community of life.  I'm not saying you're bad, but you don't know what you're doing.  And you oughtn't do what you're doing, until you know what you're doing and that it's good for the whole planet.  Thank you.


[end] of submission by ms. Bhreathnach  



CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you Máire.  Is there 






anybody else who would like to make a submission?  

Dr. Aldridge: 


I have one point in support 






of that...(INTERJECTION). 
CHAIRMAN: 



There are other people here 






who may wish to say something.  And if and when they have said their piece, I will allow each of you back in again.  
Anybody else like to say anything?  There is a gentleman down there on the right.  

[submission] of mr. Mike cunningham  

mr. Cunningham:


Thank you Mr. Chairman.  My 






name is Mike Cunningham.  I am a former Director of Statoil Inspiration Ireland limited.  I'm a journalist and write on these issues and have been following this project from Day one.  

I would like to make a few observations.  First of all I fully endorse, what will I call it, the perception and more than perception, the belief of this community, that this pipeline contains a real risk to the people of Rossport.  

I would also like to say that the project from what I've seen has been mismanaged from Day one which has given rise to the ongoing safety concerns, particularly within this community, and even further afield.  

This project has been progressed by project splitting which has an inherent effect in respect to safety.  It's been split, it's been progressed piece‑meal and this is a facet that's been outlined by the EU.  

Shell all along have referred to Snovit and Ormalanga as comparable projects in respect of the gas pipeline.  There is no comparison.  One does understand that they are sub‑sea developments.  But what we are talking about here is a 9 kilometre pipeline inland.  In the case of Ormalanga and Snovit, that is not the case.  It gives rise to great safety concerns, which I have already said.  

In fact Snovit at the moment is $1.2 billion over budget because of mismanagement and defective equipment.  

This project is already at least two years behind schedule and it is my opinion that this project must be re‑evaluated and at the very least the pipeline route, this contentious 9 kilometres of pipeline, be seriously considered for reconfiguration.  That's my lot.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[end] of submission of mr. Mike cunningham
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you, Mr. Cunningham.  Can I just enquire do you live in this area.

Mr. Cunningham: 


Yes ‑‑ I do not live in 






this area, but I have been bred and born in Castlebar.  I'm a frequent visitor to this area, I've holidayed here for many, many years.  And I've also worked internationally on oil and gas exploration and been in the business for the last 25 to 30 years and I now write quite a lot on these issues. 
CHAIRMAN: 



I see.  And you have said, 






as I understand you, a former Director of?  

Mr. Cunningham:


Former Director of Statoil 






Exploration Limited. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Did you have any 






involvement with this project at any stage?  

Mr. Cunningham:


In the initial stages in 






respect of the licenses on the Erris line, yes, when I was based in London. 
CHAIRMAN: 



When was that 






approximately?  

Mr. Cunningham:


That was probably about 






1996, 1994 to 1996.  I've also been involved in the development of the Connemara project for Statoil off the west coast of Ireland in 1997.  That was an oil exploration project, not a gas project. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.

Mr. Cunningham: 


Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN: 



Anybody else?  No?  It is 






now 3:56.  I think we will rise or take a break for about 10 minutes to see if anybody either has further thoughts or wants to say something.  We'll see where we go from there.  Anybody else want to say anything?  No.  We are not winding up yet.  About 4:10.  

[Short] adjournment 

[THE] HEARING RESUMED, AS FOLLOWS, AFTER THE 
SHORT ADJOURNMENT 



CHAIRMAN: 



Ladies and gentlemen, would 






you mind closing the door, please.  

Now, has anybody else anything else to say, any submission to make; anybody over here?  We will get you a microphone now.  

[SUBMISSION] BY MR. BRENDAN CONWAY 


MR. CONWAY: 


Brendan Conway is my name, 






land owner from Leenamore which is adjacent to the proposed terminal.  The first question that I'd here for both parties would be; do they know the exact depth of the bog in Leenamore? 

And my second statement, it's more a statement than a question.  It's regarding the fact that the pipe, the proposed pipe, is to cross a main road, which I think should be taken into consideration as much as houses, because at any one given time there could be more people crossing that pipe than would be living in a house, at any other given time.  For instance, a school bus passes that road four times a day.  People commute to a crèche twice a day, lots of individual cars with their children.  And it is also the road for people commuting to the local doctor.  

So, really the question that I'm asking is about the safety of the pipe crossing a road.  I think it should be taken into consideration more so than the pipe running through bog, so to speak, or land.  What necessary precautions should be taken with a pipe crossing under a public road?  If someone could throw a bit of light on that question now I'd appreciate it.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I will certainly put that 






question as a general question.  Which of you gentlemen would like to deal with it?  What is the general standard and what is the requirement in relation to pipeline such as this in crossing the road?

DR. ANDREWS: 


Thank you, Mr. Chairman, 






the requirements for a pipeline crossing a road are addressed in the Design Code in general terms so that classifies roads according to the density of the traffic on the road and then the design of the pipeline is adjusted accordingly to take account of traffic on the road.  That obviously is an issue that we will address in the Safety Review.  I think it would be premature to give any comment on our findings at the moment.  But we would obviously as part of the Review address whether the Code is being, in our view, correctly applied to those conditions.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Can Mr. Conway and 






everybody else present take it, that when a pipeline has been designed that specific attention is given to the needs to perhaps, strengthen the pipe under the road, or to provide additional protection for it, or whatever; is that so?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


Yes, that is correct.  The 






Code does address the issue that you need to take extra measures at a road crossing to take account, for example, by providing protection or other means.  It is probably not appropriate to go into the fine detail of how it is done.  The amount of protection is also dependent on the level of traffic on the road as well.  So the Code does address those issues.  And that is obviously something that we will consider in our review of the particular design.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Can Mr. Conway take it that 






in conducting your Review you will have regard to the fact that a school bus travels along this road four times a day perhaps, or more often than that, the volume of traffic that would be on it, the fact that heavy trucks perhaps carrying 30 or 40 tons of sand or whatever, would be using that road from time to time.  Would that all be taken into account?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


You would expect factors 






such as the usage of a route to be taken into account in the design.  I don't think at this stage I can comment on whether that is being done...(INTERJECTION)

CHAIRMAN: 



I am not suggesting that, 






but it is a matter that you would address as part of your Review I take it?  

DR. ACTON: 



Yes, Bob's answer is 






basically that the engineering design should take into account the fact that the pipeline is crossing a road.  The other aspect that you are referring to, the school buses as an example, that is really more an aspect for the risk assessment actually.  So in the event that something untoward happens to the pipeline, the number of people who are exposed to the risk, and so yes, I mean that's a factor in the risk assessment as well.  So, yes, it's a factor in both bits, if you like.  It's a factor in the engineering design and in the risk assessment.  

CHAIRMAN:



All right.  

MR. CONWAY: 


To come up with a safety 






solution to a bog crossing the road, I take it that you would have to revert back to this having been done already because this, we believe, has never been done before.  The fact that this road is actually built on bog, it's built on very, very deep blanket bog; how would you come about to come to a conclusion of what would be safe?  

You may revert back to a pipeline, maybe a Bord Gais pipe, going through main roads up in Dublin or down in Cork or wherever, where there isn't bog.  But these roads are built on bog.  So what I'm asking is, how would you come to a conclusion as to this being safe, when it was never carried out before theoretically or practically?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


Yes, there are procedures 






for looking at the stresses that are induced on the pipe by a road crossing.  It would probably be necessary to adapt those to take account of the presence of the bog.  

Also some of the protected measures that are used on the pipe might need modification to take account of the presence of the bog and that they are adequately supported.  So I think this is an ongoing issue that we are still addressing as part of the review as well.  

MR. CONWAY: 


Just one more question, do 






you find it acceptable that a pipe of this nature, and this pressure, and its capacity should be just 1.3 or 1.4 metres or whatever the exact depth is in very deep bog?  I'm talking about bog that would be in or around 20 to 25 foot deep, which would be equivalent to about 78 metres.  Would you find it acceptable to bury a pipe of this nature in 1.3 metres?  

CHAIRMAN: 



I think that rather than 






ask them a direct question in that fashion because you are perhaps in a way preempting or asking them to announce a conclusion that they may not have yet reached and may not reach for some time yet.  Perhaps you might rephrase it on the basis; are you aware that the bog is some 
20 feet, or 25 feet deep, and from an engineering point of view relatively easy to bury the pipe some 
8, or 10, or 15 feet below the surface; will you bear that in mind?  Is that fair?  

MR. CONWAY: 


Yeah, to readdress the 






question; would you take it into consideration in your final report that there is bog 20 to 25 foot deep expected to contain a pipe; just take it into consideration, please.  

DR. ANDREWS: 


Again, to the Chair, we 






will be taking that into our consideration.  We have received some information relating to depth of cover.  There are two issues about the depth of cover and also the depth of material below the bog, below the pipe.  We have received some information relating to the design in that and we will certainly be including that in the review.

MR. CONWAY: 


Just one more question if 






that is okay.  The pipe pipeline that's been put in at the moment, or maybe put in to the Corrib Project, if in the future there was another gas field found with gas different nature, would this pipe itself, would it be capable of carrying the gas without being corroded because of a different gas nature?  

DR. ACTON: 



Well, it is difficult to 






answer that question without knowing the nature of the gas that might be put in it.  You are right, I mean, if further wells are discovered that had a different gas composition then the safety of the pipeline would need to be re‑evaluated.  

One of the corrosion sort of threats, I suppose, to a pipeline is hydrogen sulphide which is sometimes found in gas wells.  Now, there's no evidence of that being present.  But were another well to be connected, for example, that would have to be checked.  The pressure may well be different in another well, so that's got to be checked.  But you can't answer that.  That's just a hypothetical question without knowing what it might be really.

MR. CONWAY: 


I take it that this 






pipeline is to carry gas for the duration of the Corrib gas field which is intended to be 20 years.  Would you, after 20 years, if there was found that there was an extra five, or 10, or probably 15 years anyway left in the field, would this pipe have to be changed or some form of additional work be carried out on it to carry the gas for an additional five or 20 or whatever years?

DR. ANDREWS: 


Again, Mr. Chairman, as my 






colleague said, that at the moment is a hypothetical question.  But it is possible to re‑evaluate the safety of a pipeline taking account of what has happened in the potential 20 years it has operated, and then form a view as to whether it is fit for further operation.  

And we have routinely done that for pipelines within the UK and elsewhere.  The techniques exist and are well established.  And it would be a question, I think, of the appropriate licensing authority addressing that extension to review all aspects of the proposed future operation at some time in the future.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Can I ask, arising from 






that answer, would it be normal in such a situation where a pipe had been used for 20 years for the Licensing Body to require some form of an assessment of the pipe, or an examination of the pipe, whether by means of a camera, or in whatever other way to establish whether or not the pipe had corroded or had deteriorated in any significant way as to render it perhaps unsuitable for a further 10 years or 15 years use?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


Yes, Mr. Chairman, in 






effect it would be continuing to apply the normal operation and maintenance steps which are applied to any pipeline as part of the Integrity Management Plan to ensure that it's fit for service at the current conditions.  With the results from those inspections, you will know, as you have suggested, perhaps by using inspection tools what the state the pipeline is in at that time and you can then decide whether or not that it is fit for service into the future.  

So, the techniques for doing that are well established.  We have done that and also in fact, allowed increases in pressure on some occasions, not that I think that is an issue here at all, but the same techniques can be used to establish future life.  So, the answer is, yes, you can form a view and decide whether a pipeline is fit for future service and for how long as well.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you.  

MR. CONWAY: 


Just one more question.  






Somebody else may have made reference to this today already, it's regarding the umbilical cord.  I take it that the umbilical cord is the means of turning on and off the valves on the well‑head; would that be correct?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


Yes, that is our 






understanding, yes.

MR. CONWAY: 


In the unlikely event of an 






explosion, the umbilical is running alongside the actual gas pipe, if that cord got damaged how would the well‑head valves be turned off?  

DR. ANDREWS: 


The normal design of these 






valves is such that they will fail safe.  So if they lose the pressure from the umbilical they will fail to a safe condition and turn off without any further intervention.  
MR. CONWAY:



Further to that there is 






no back‑up, you're relying on something mechanical.  There's no back‑up.  If you're on/off switch is gone, you're relying on something else to automatically kick in.

DR. ANDREWS: 


Well, no, you are relying 






‑‑ it would be closer to something like a spring‑loaded on/off switch, so if it is no longer held open, the spring forces it; I'm not saying it would be a spring, but it fails to a closed position when it loses the control.

MR. CONWAY: 


Thank you.  

CHAIRMAN: 



Anything else?  

MR. CONWAY: 


No, thank you, I am okay. 

END OF SUBMISSION BY MR. BRENDAN CONWAY 


CHAIRMAN: 



Does anybody else have any 






questions to ask or submissions to make?  If there is nobody else to speak at this stage perhaps, Mr. Sweetman, do you want to? 

MR. SWEETMAN:  


Monica has a point to make.

MS. MULLER: 


It is only two minutes, 






it's just I like to work on fact; can you hear me?
CHAIRMAN: 



We want to get you 






recorded.  You might just announce your name for the record.

CLOSING SUBMISSION BY MS. MONICA MULLER


MS. MULLER: 


I'm Monica Muller and I 






only need two minutes because I want to point something out to Advantica to helpful as ever and that was equally to the Technical Advisory Group.  I like to work on facts, and for once Shell came up with a beautiful statement, very factual, by Mr. Gerry Costello.  The occasion was the eleventh meeting of the Environmental Monitoring Group held on 8th June 2005 in our house.  

And Mr. Costello said in answer to 
Mr. Gerard Mc Donnell who spoke earlier, questioning the 70 metres safety distance, Mr. Costello said: 
 

"That anything further would make it impossible to lay any pipeline".  


So, if I can send any further than 70 metres, yes.  So the 70 metres is not safe, so that will finish the project, I hope.

CHAIRMAN: 



So what is your question?  

MS. MULLER: 


I just point out the 






statement Shell make that from 70 metres distance from the pipeline to the well‑heads, cannot be further than 70 metres.  And 
Mr. Costello is on record to say if it is any further than 70 metres it would be impossible to lay any pipeline.  I want you to make note, that is my finishing line. 
 
END OF SUBMISSION BY MS. MONICA MULLER  

CLOSING SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN 


MR. SWEETMAN: 


Peter Sweetman.  I won't be 






quite be as quick, but I will be very brief.  

Mr. Hanna was asked a few questions talking about pressure and speed.  He didn't really answer the question.  The pressure in the well is 345 bar and that is accepted by everybody, but it hasn't been fully accepted by anybody.  The pipeline can in emergency reach 345.  

The speed of the gas at which it blows out, if there is a leak, is extremely relevant to us because whether it goes 2 metres, 20 metres, or 10 metres down, the creator will be so bloody big that it doesn't matter how deep you put it, we just all get blown to smithereens, he realises that.  Now, he did say and I have to take absolute contradiction to him here, that the Department has never produced this project.  Mr. Fahey, that famous Minister...(INTERJECTION)  

CHAIRMAN: 



Mr. Sweetman.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, he made the point, I'm 






rebutting him completely, sorry.  

CHAIRMAN: 



I am not interested in 






rebutting him, because quite frankly it is not a question of rebutting it.  It is not like a Court or a Public Inquiry...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


I know it's not, but just 






get it correct.  
CHAIRMAN: 



If you have a submission to 






make to them, please do so.  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Okay, this is it.  It's a 






one‑liner.  Mr. Fahey in this room announces favouritism to this project before any application was before anybody.  And he changed the law specifically relevant to CPO's, specifically to facilitate the development on this site prior to any consent being given on anything.  So we have to take what Mr. Hanna there said with a pinch of salt.  The EIA Directive states that you have to "assess alternatives", that was never done properly by the Department.

CHAIRMAN: 



Did you make that point at 






any other...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


At all of them, yeah.

CHAIRMAN: 



You are aware that this 






Inquiry, or this Hearing, or this process is not dealing with EIA's. 

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, it is.

CHAIRMAN: 



The EIA's have been dealt 






with...(INTERJECTION)

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Well, that's questionable, 






but Mr. Kevin Moore in his submission found that the alternatives had not been adequately addressed in his submission.  The Planning Standards of the compounds is before the High Court and that's another matter.  We'll leave that for that day.  I would like to say that both Monica and I totally agree with the statements made by 
Mike Cunningham and therefore we won't repeat them.

CHAIRMAN: 



By whom?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Mike Cunningham, the ex 






director of Stat Oil, oil expert.  Now, just a second, there were comments made about An Taisce which I have to rebut, because 
An Taisce does not grant or refuse planning permission.  An Taisce is a prescribed body, not supported by the State, who makes observations to the Planning Authority and may appeal to An Bord Pleanala and the rest of the statement was completely wrong.  

We don't know what the Best International Code is, but we do know what the British Code is, and the British Code; this development cannot comply with the British code.  So we needn't go any further into what the Best Internationals are because it doesn't avail of the thing. 

The pipeline as constructed, as installed at the moment, right, has no consent at any form whatsoever because it's on the wrong site.  

Relevant to alternatives, the most logical alternative for an onshore; there are three types of terminal.  There's an offshore, there's an onshore and there's an inland.  This is the only inland one in the world.  There are other ‑‑ Shell are very keen at mixing up onshore and inland.  This is inland, not onshore.  Onshore means beside the shore line like the Shetland's.

There is a perfect site belonging to [Udras] beside the golf course in Belmullet, which was never addressed and the other suitable site is south of the bay.  The waste water can return to the well from any site.  It doesn't matter where it is.

CHAIRMAN: 



Sorry, I did not quite 






catch what you said there about the golf club in Belmullet?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


There is oodless land 






adjacent to the golf club land, adjacent to the golf club in Belmullet, which would have been an onshore site on basic rock, well, it didn't require the removal of 650 cubic metres, it didn't require any upstream pipeline on land which should have been looked at and perhaps will now happen to be when the consultants find that this pipeline doesn't work.

CHAIRMAN: 



Are you suggesting this as 






a location for the terminal?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


Yeah.  It should be looked 






at.  It should have been looked at in the first place.  But you see no alternative was ever looked at properly because this consent for the pipeline was given before any consent went to An Bord Pleanala and the terminal was decided by Mr. Fahey without any consultation.  He also said that all our objections to the pipeline ‑‑ he refused an Oral Hearing under the CPO legislation because they were frivolous and vexatious, all right.  That's Mr. Fahey.  And Mr. Fahey has a lot to answer for.  

We talked about; we dealt with road crossings.  There is no sign of them.  The traffic management came up as such.  Traffic management was a condition of 
D. O'Brien letter.  I think that TAG better look at that because there isn't a traffic management that complies with the conditions of TAG, as well as everything else.  

There is no sign relevant to bogs.  I'm very interested to hear that the consultants have now got a depth to cover document.  I would be very interested in seeing that document so that we can actually assess that and make valid submissions to their consultation, because without it, I'm at a complete loss.  

There is also a Section 5 in place, not by Monica or I, but a Section 5 in place, going through the motions at the moment, relevant to the compounds requiring planning permission and that will third.  After Mr. Hanna's response that the upstream pipeline, the gas in the upstream pipeline is the same as in Mr. Gallagher's kitchen, I am afraid that I have lost complete faith in the TAG and I just hope that there's no cadmium waste being discharged from Mr. Gallagher's kitchen illegally.

CHAIRMAN: 



Only when I am there.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No, no, cadmium, I hope you 






understand cadmium.  Before I go, during our time in this room, which is five hours, Shell has made 20 million in profit.  And, Mr. Gallagher, I want to thank you for the manner in which you have done this Hearing and I look forward to seeing you on the bench in the High Court.

CHAIRMAN: 



Thank you very much.  Given 






that you had endorsed what Mr. Cunningham had said, it occurred to me that I should ask you whether you also endorsed what 
Mr. Mc Donnell has said, or indeed what Tom has said earlier, that the pipeline should remain in situ until a final decision is taken and that some form of monetary penalty be imposed on Shell as an alternative?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It is not relevant.

CHAIRMAN: 



I know that somebody else 






suggested that it should be in addition.

MR. SWEETMAN: 


It's not relevant, the law 






doesn't allow it.  I'm a law‑abiding citizen, the law doesn't allow it.  It's an illegal development, it must be demolished.

CHAIRMAN: 



How about Mr. Mc Donnell's 






suggestions that he went through 19 or 20 in total, 19 I think; would you broadly agree with what he suggested?  

MR. SWEETMAN: 


No.  

END OF CLOSING SUBMISSION BY MR. PETER SWEETMAN
  


CHAIRMAN: 



Okay, anybody else?  It is 






now 4:50 p.m. and I propose to adjourn this Hearing until 10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.  But before I do so, I want to hand over to Mr. Hanna in public, lest anybody might suggest that I went off with these in the boot of my car, I am handing over the various submissions that I received and that were handed in here today so that he can distribute them among his colleagues and ensure that the professionals on my right also received them. 

Thank you very much for coming.  Thank you for your, I suppose, good humour and the manner in which you dealt with this and please God maybe we will see some of you tomorrow.  Thank you very much indeed.  


[THE] HEARING WAS ADJOURNED UNTIL THURSDAY 13 OCTOBER 2005 AT 10:00 A.M. 
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